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FOREWORD

Once again I am pleased to introduce the Scottish Prison
Service’s Annual Report and Accounts for 2015-16. It has been
an exciting and, at times, challenging year for the service but
one where our staff and partners have risen to those challenges.
Building on the work undertaken in
2014-15 we have been concentrating
on delivering our strategic priorities
and their associated deliverables.
Our seven strategic priorities identified
in the Organisational Review are
described and reported on extensively
within this document however I want to
take this opportunity to highlight a few
specific initiatives we have undertaken
in the course of the past year.
New remits have been prepared for
the Advisory Board, the Executive
Management Group (EMG) and
the Risk Management and Audit
Committee (RMAC), which are the
principal governance groups within
the organisation. These new remits
reflect best practice from across
a variety of sectors but have been
shaped to reflect the needs of SPS as
an executive agency. I am especially
grateful to those involved in this work.
I am confident that going forward our
governance structures will provide a
much more rigorous test bed for the
activities of our organisation.
In addition to this and responding to
a report by Audit Scotland I initiated
a full review on corporate governance,
including contracting with Polley
Solutions Limited to support staff
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in taking forward this review.
The report of the independent
consultants was delivered to the
SPS in March 2016. I have agreed with
Directors how these recommendations
will be taken forward.
It is also worth noting that the SPS
Framework Document which sets out
the relationship between the agency
and Scottish Government was also
refreshed in the course of the year and
published in March 2016.
Women and young people continue
to be major priorities. October
2015 saw the publication of the
Consultation Report on the future
of the women’s custodial estate.
This coupled with outcomes of the
international symposium ‘From Vision
to Reality – transforming Scotland’s
care of women in custody’ which we
hosted in May 2015, has continued
to inform the development of the
new custodial estate for women.
In February 2016 it was announced
that more than half of the women in
HMP & YOI Cornton Vale would be
moved to newer, more fit for purpose
accommodation at HM YOI Polmont
so that the process for the creation of
the new national facility on the site of
HMP & YOI Cornton Vale can begin.

We continue to progress our strategy
for young people. We have made a
considerable investment to the site
at HM YOI Polmont particularly in the
learning facilities to ensure that the
widest possible range of activities
and support for young people in our
care exist.
These are just a few of the highlights
which you will find described in greater
detail elsewhere in this report. I want
to end by paying tribute to the women
and men who work for SPS, without
their dedication, passion, commitment
and care this organisation would
not work and we would not see the
transformational changes that are
being made in the lives of many in our
care. We work hard, and will continue
to work hard, to ensure that the wider
community are aware of the vast
contribution they make to making
Scotland a safer and better place
for us all.

Colin McConnell
Chief Executive
24 June 2016
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Colin McConnell		
Chief Executive

...THE STAFF OF THE SCOTTISH PRISON SERVICE CONTINUE
TO SHOW THEIR ENTHUSIASM AND THEIR COMMITMENT TO
MAKING OUR VISION A REALITY.”
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PURPOSE AND ACTIVITIES

The SPS continues to deliver a range of operational services that
contribute to the strategic outcomes, objectives and policies of
the Scottish Government.
History
The Scottish Prison Service (SPS) is an
agency of the Scottish Government
and was first established in April 1993.
The SPS Framework Document
sets out the policy and resources
framework set by Scottish Ministers
within which the SPS operates. As an
Executive Agency, the SPS is funded
by the Scottish Government.
In line with the Framework Document,
the SPS sets out its business objectives
in the three-year Corporate Plan for the
period 2014-17 and an Annual Delivery
Plan which is published in the Spring
of each year. The current Corporate
and Delivery Plans are driven by the
strategic priorities identified in the
SPS Organisational Review ‘Unlocking
Potential-Transforming Lives’ which
was published in 2013.
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Our Principal Activities
The SPS is a public service-led agency
which is legally required to deliver
custodial and rehabilitation services
for those sent to it by the courts.
Appendix 3 details the average
number of individuals held in custody
during 2015-16.
The SPS continues to deliver a range of
operational services that contribute to
the strategic outcomes, objectives and
policies of the Scottish Government.
Our principal objective is to contribute
to making ‘Scotland Safer by Protecting
the Public and Reducing Reoffending’.
The SPS aims to achieve this by
ensuring delivery of secure custody;
safe and ordered prisons; decent
standards of care; and opportunities
for those citizens in our care to develop
in a way that helps them reintegrate
into the community on release.

To support this objective, SPS agrees
a service framework with each public
sector prison and manages private
sector providers of prisons and
custodial services under contract
arrangements.
The SPS also manages, on behalf of
multi-agency justice partners, the
national contract for the provision of
court custody and prisoner escorting
and routinely works and cooperates
with statutory and other partners to
deliver improved Justice Outcomes.
At 1 April 2015 there were 13 publicly
managed prisons, two privately
managed prisons (HMP Addiewell and
HMP Kilmarnock) and a provider of
Court Custody and Prisoner Escorting
Services. Appendix 1 shows the
location of the prisons.
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Vision and Mission of SPS
The Scottish Prison Service has
a Vision of Helping to build a safer
Scotland – Unlocking Potential –
Transforming Lives.
The Mission of the SPS is: Providing
services to help to transform the
lives of the people in our care so they
can fulfil their potential and become
responsible citizens.
In delivering our Vision and Mission our
Operating Task is: Helping to protect
the public and reduce reoffending
through the delivery of safe and secure
custodial services that empower the
offender to take responsibility to fulfil
their potential.
We deliver this through:
Custody – Managing safe and secure
custodial environments;
Order – Providing stability and order
that helps offenders to transform
their lives;
Care – Supporting wellbeing and
treating with respect and humanity
all in our care;
Opportunity – Providing opportunities
which develop the potential of our
staff, our partnerships and the people
in our care.

Our Commitment and Values
Our Vision and Mission provide a
driving ambition and clarity of direction
for our organisation. Our commitment
remains to:

> Develop a person-centred,

1. Embedding the New Vision;

> Encourage and support our staff and

those in our care to be all they can be;

2. Delivering effective and
efficient services;

> Together with partners strengthen

links into communities and support
reintegration on release; and

3. Developing a person-centred,
asset‑based approach;

> Professionalise and invest in SPS staff

can change;
> Respect – we have proper regard

for individuals, their needs and their
human rights;
> Integrity – we apply high ethical,

care regardless of circumstances; and

Our Strategic Priorities
To deliver the Vision and Mission,
SPS has seven strategic priorities:

asset‑based approach to unlock
the potential of our people and
those in our care;

> Belief – we believe that people

> Courage – we have the courage to

own, we recognise we can learn
from others.

‘whole system’;

Our core values are the foundation
of how we behave and are central
to our organisation relating to our
commitment to respecting human
rights. We believe that the keys to
delivering our Mission are:

to achieve the best outcomes;

> Humility – we cannot do this on our

> View ourselves as part of the

as effective change agents.

> Openness – we work with others

4. Becoming a learning organisation;
5. Delivering a collaborative
outcome focus;
6. Promoting public confidence
in SPS; and
7. Investing in SPS people.
For the 2015-16 Annual Delivery
Plan these priorities have defined
outcomes against which performance
can be reviewed and reported on.
This Performance Framework,
showing the links to the Justice
Outcomes and National Outcomes,
is shown in Appendix 8.

moral and professional standards;
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Our Contribution to
National Outcomes
The SPS contributes to Scotland
Performs, the Strategic Objectives
of Safer and Stronger Communities,
and the National Outcomes through
deliverables identified within the
Corporate and Annual Delivery Plans.
These deliverables have been
developed under key themes in each
of the strategic priority outcomes.
This means that our ability to set
Key Performance Measures has
improved and will be developed
further to achieve a comprehensive
and robust Performance Framework
which captures both Operational
Performance Indicators (operational
results) and Corporate Performance
Measures (balanced scorecard
approach). The current structure
is shown in Appendix 8.
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The National Performance Framework
and the agenda for public services
reform outlined in the Commission on
the Future Delivery of Public Services
underpin what we do. Success in
achieving our Vision will contribute
very directly to the following
National Outcomes:
> We live our lives safe from crime,

disorder and danger;
> We have strong, resilient and

supportive communities where
people take responsibility for their
own actions and how they affect
others; and
> Our public services are high quality,

continually improving, efficient and
responsive to local people’s needs.
These National Outcomes are reflected
in the Strategy for Justice in Scotland.
We have a strong lead role to play in the
delivery of the Vision of this strategy
to contribute positively to a flourishing
Scotland, helping to create an inclusive

and respectful society in which all
people and communities live in safety
and security. A society where individual
and collective rights are supported and
disputes are resolved fairly and swiftly.
Stakeholder Engagement
We have engaged and will continue
to engage with stakeholders locally,
nationally and internationally, and work
closely with a wide range of bodies to
help shape our services.
Our partners include:
> Community Justice Authorities
> Community Planning Partnerships
> Education Scotland
> Employers
> Local Authorities
> NHS
> Police
> Scottish Government
> Skills Development Scotland
> Third Sector
> Universities
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KEY RISKS AND ISSUES
SPS believes that the achievement
of corporate objectives relies upon
the taking of appropriate risks as long
as they are managed effectively. Risks
are regularly reviewed throughout
the SPS, in combination with the

assessment and implementation
of appropriate and targeted controls
and mitigations.
The following risks and challenges
are considered to be the key items

Risk

which could impact on the successful
delivery of our corporate objectives,
notwithstanding that there are other
risks that may occur and may impact
on the achievement of objectives.

How we manage it

Maintaining engagement and commitment to deliver
transformational agenda

> Communication strategy on progress
> Established linkages between Corporate Plan,
Annual Delivery Plans and commitments
> Linkages to investment strategy and budget allocation
process, performance measurement and continuous
improvement mechanisms

Failure of a key strategic supplier/provider to deliver
key services/outputs

> Implementation of SPS efficiencies to aid service delivery
> Design and implementation of appropriate contingency plans,
specific to particular key suppliers/contracts
> Continual identification and assessment of supplier/providers
deemed to be of concern

Inability to effectively contribute to the Strategy
for Women in Custody

> Dedicated joint agency team
> In-depth programme planning and critical path identification
> Integrated stakeholder consultation programme
> Staged gateway reviews

Failure of IT to support the needs of the business

> Review and reprioritisation of key projects and applications
> Revised work plan
> Production of Digital Strategy

Meeting the social care requirements of prisoners
with high care needs

> Social care needs assessments
> Development of long-term strategy for management
of people with high social care needs
> Rigorous tracking of social care spend
> Development of new and/ or converted cells into
accessible layout
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PERFORMANCE SUMMARY
SPS performance is monitored through its Corporate Plan, Annual Delivery Plan and Key Performance Indicators.
Performance is monitored throughout the year, with quarterly reports on performance provided to the Executive
Management Group (EMG) and Advisory Board.
Annual Delivery Plan Performance
In the reporting year 2015-16, SPS had 87 corporate deliverables. More detail on performance against these
is contained in the Performance Analysis section of the Annual Report and Accounts.
Key Performance Indicators
SPS has a number of Key Performance Indicators which monitor our performance on key areas of delivery.
The results are shown in the table below.
Operational Performance – Combined Figures for All Prisons
Operational Performance Indicator Results*

2015-16

2014-15

1a

Escapes: Extreme risk

0

0

1b

Escapes: other

0

1

2a

Serious Prisoner on Staff Assaults

4

9

2b

Prisoner on Staff Assaults – Minor and No Injury

202

161

2c

Serious Prisoner on Prisoner Assaults

79

66

2d

Prisoner on Prisoner Assaults – Minor and No Injury

1,971

1,767

3a

Purposeful Activity Hours**

7,045,779

7,098,196

3b

Average Purposeful Activity Hours per week per Convicted Prisoner

23

22

4a

% Education Classes Spent Delivering Literacy**

32.5

35

4b

% Education Classes Spent Delivering Numeracy**

15

16.7

5a

Vocational and Employment-Related Qualifications**

19,893

18,152

5b

Work Skills Qualifications at level 5 or above**

2,472

2,572

6

Employability Prospects Increased

n/a

n/a

7

% Reduced Substance Abuse

46

41

8

% ICM Case Conferences Held with CJSW in Attendance

88.4

88.2

9

Average Annual Cost Per Prisoner Place***

34,399

34,102

10

Reducing Carbon Emissions

n/a

45,409

   *
**
***

An explanation of Operational Performance Indicators is shown at Appendix 8b.
2014-15 figures have been restated following quality assurance checks.
The average cost per prisoner place excludes capital charges, exceptional payments and the cost of the Court Custody and Prisoner Escort Contract. SPS
publishes cost and performance information on the latter separately on its website.
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As the table above shows, SPS has
maintained safe Custody and order
over the reporting period with zero
escapes or absconds. There has also
been a significant reduction in serious
assaults on staff by prisoners as the
numbers have more than halved,
however there has been an almost 25%
increase in the number of minor or no
injury assaults on staff by prisoners.

The number of vocational and
employment related qualifications
gained by prisoners throughout
2015‑16 increased by 1,741.

Whilst the overall number of
purposeful activity hours delivered
across SPS has reduced, the average
hours of purposeful activity delivered
per week to convicted prisoners has
increased. This reduction reflects the
fluctuation in population numbers.

In line with the delivery of an efficient
service, SPS has achieved a cost per
prisoner place of £34,399.

The number of prisoners with reduced
or stabilised substance misuse has
increased to 46%. This reflects the
organisations continued efforts in
working with partners to deliver drug
awareness and support services.

Overall prison population numbers
rose from 7,616 on 1 April 2015 to
7,661 on 31 March 2016. The number
of individuals in our care peaked at

7,858 on 12 August 2015 (please note
these figures exclude those on Home
Detention Curfew1). The average
daily population figures are shown
in Appendix 2.
During 2015-16, the Scottish
Government introduced new
mandatory climate change reporting
requirements which supersede existing
SPS reporting arrangements and
as a result, the figure for Reducing
Carbon Emissions is not yet available.
Further information can be found in the
Performance Analysis on page 14.
The performance statistics for
Employability Prospects Increased
are not available.

1 Home Detention Curfew (HDC) is a measure to improve the management and progression of individuals by allowing eligible individuals who present low
risk to be released on licence between two weeks and six months before the end of their sentence. As at 31 March 2016 280 service users were under HDC
arrangements. During 2015-16 an average of 304 individuals were on HDC compared to an average of 350 in 2014-15.
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Financial Performance
Financial performance is monitored
throughout the year and is reported
to the Advisory Board, Risk Monitoring
and Audit Committee and to
Scottish Government on a regular
basis. A more detailed analysis of
SPS financial performance for 2015‑16
can be found on pages 20 to 22 of
the Performance Analysis and in the
Financial Statements and notes to
the accounts from page 46 onwards.
Future Developments
First and foremost SPS is committed
to continuing to deliver high quality
custodial services to those remitted
to SPS by the Courts. Building on
relationships with statutory and third
sector partner agencies is critical to
delivering SPS’s mission to provide
services that help to transform the
lives of people in our care so that they
can fulfil their potential and become
responsible citizens.
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SPS will continue to address the
challenges of managing our prison
population. Although recorded
crime rates are falling the prison
population is projected to rise
with the ending of automatic early
release, increases in the number of
those convicted of sex offences and
offences related to domestic violence
and abuse. Increasing numbers of
service users are also coming into our
establishments with high levels of
health and care needs.
In the year ahead, SPS will implement
its People Strategy to ensure that
the organisation has the right people
in the right place at the right time.
To complement this SPS will be
delivering its Shaping the Future
project which will consider the future
operating model of the service.

A priority area will be taking forward
the Women Offenders Strategy and
consolidating the Young People’s
Strategy. SPS will also continue to
develop its approach to purposeful
activity across the estate in order to
ensure that service users have the
opportunity to move back to their
communities equipped with practical
life skills which can help them achieve
a sustainable way of life.
In 2016-17 SPS will work to develop our
new Corporate Plan. The organisation
will consolidate its planning cycle
to ensure that there is a clear line of
sight between the Corporate Plan, the
Annual Delivery Plan, Business Plans,
the Organisational Review and national
policy as determined by the Scottish
Government. This will ensure that the
planning and performance frameworks
inform and support operational
delivery in a complex and fast moving
strategic environment.
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PERFORMANCE ANALYSIS

Throughout the year progress has been made in achieving the
SPS’s corporate deliverables, which all help to deliver SPS’s
strategic priority of embedding the vision of the organisation
in all the work that we do.
Strategic Priorities
The SPS Corporate Plan and Annual
Delivery Plan are where the organisation
sets out how it will achieve its Vision and
aims over the three-year planning cycle.
Following the publication of the
Corporate Plan 2014-17 and Annual
Delivery Plan 2015-16, focus has
been on the delivery of the Strategic
Priorities and associated corporate
deliverables. This section of the
Annual Report and Accounts contains
a summary of performance against
each of the seven SPS strategic
priorities that were identified in the
SPS Organisational Review: Unlocking
Potential – Transforming Lives.
These priorities are listed on page 5.
Embedding the Vision
Following the publication of the
Organisational Review (OR) in 2013,
SPS has worked to ensure that the
correct structures, systems, and
people are in place to support the
organisation’s capability to plan and
deliver the programme of change
identified by the Organisational Review.
This year a number of Interim Directors

were appointed to lead key Directorates
and take forward the change agenda
aimed at making our Vision a reality.
Michael Stoney and Fraser Munro
are managing the operational
delivery of custodial services, as
well as ensuring the delivery of these
services by private sector partners.
Teresa Medhurst is leading the
Strategy and Innovation Directorate,
taking forward projects such as
Throughcare and Purposeful Activity.
Throughout the year progress has been
made in achieving the SPS’s corporate
deliverables, which all help to deliver
SPS’s strategic priority of embedding
the vision of the organisation in all the
work that we do. Over the reporting
period, SPS completed 63 of the 87
corporate deliverables set out in the
Annual Delivery Plan 2015-16.
Delivering Effective
and Efficient Services
Governance
New remits were prepared for the
Advisory Board, the Executive
Management Group (EMG), and the
Risk Monitoring and Audit Committee

(RMAC), SPS’s principal governance
groups. The refreshed remits are
designed to reflect best practice and
are tailored to meet the requirements
of SPS as an Executive Agency of the
Scottish Government.
The Change Portfolio Board reported
to the Chief Executive bi-monthly, the
EMG quarterly and the Advisory Board
bi-annually.
The Corporate Change Unit introduced
a Change Portfolio Management
Approach and Methodology to the
work of the SPS. A range of key staff
received project management training
and four quarterly masterclass sessions
were delivered. All Programme/Project
Management documentation is now
available on the SharePoint electronic
information system.
The organisation commenced
implementation of the action plan
prepared in response to Audit
Scotland’s annual audit of SPS in
2014‑15. This included addressing
issues around corporate governance,
risk and transparency.

FOLLOWING THE COMPREHENSIVE REVIEW OF THE SPS
IN 2013, THE SERVICE’S STRATEGIC PRIORITIES HAVE BEEN
THE BASIS OF THE CORPORATE PLAN AND ANNUAL
DELIVERY PLANS...”
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Following a report from Audit Scotland
which reviewed the governance
arrangements of SPS, a review of the
organisation’s corporate governance
was initiated by the Chief Executive
in May 2015. In August 2015, SPS
contracted with Polley Solutions Limited
to support its organisational staff in
taking forward this review. As part
of that process the Chief Executive
requested an independent report
setting out the recommendations of
the review. This work was undertaken
in partnership with SPS staff and
involved various discussions with
senior staff and Non-Executive
Directors as well as a review of existing
governance structures and processes.
The recommendations in the SPS
Governance Review 2015-16 Report,
which was circulated to the Advisory
Board on 22 March 2016, combine
the independent experience of Polley
Solutions and the organisational
specific knowledge of SPS staff.

The Chief Executive considered the
recommendations contained within
the independent report and an Action
Plan, setting out how these will be
progressed, has been agreed with
responsible owners.
The SPS Framework Document,
published in March 2016, sets out
how the service will operate and
defines its relationships with Scottish
Ministers and the Scottish Government.
This key document was refreshed in
line with best practice guidance and in
consultation with Scottish Government.
More details on the Governance
Framework and the review of the system
of internal control can be found in the
Governance Statement on page 28.
Planning and Performance
SPS’s approach to annual planning and
performance monitoring was further
developed throughout 2015-16.
There was greater interaction with the

Advisory Board as part of our planning
and reporting processes, with quarterly
performance reports being submitted
to the Board.
Safe, Humane and Secure Prisons
The Significant Incident Project which
aims to improve the process and
consistency of approach in reporting
significant incidents in establishments
commenced with development work
being undertaken in conjunction with
Police Scotland. A review of incident
paperwork was undertaken to identify
best practice resulting in redesigned
forms. An electronic reporting
template was developed to ensure that
all relevant information is documented.
The new forms have been piloted in
four establishments and work is in
progress to finalise the procedure
for significant incident reporting in
conjunction with Police Scotland and
the Prison Officers Association.
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Operating Standards and
Consistency of Delivery
Operations Directorate introduced
a new reporting process between
SPS Headquarters and establishments.
All business reviews are now carried
out by the Interim Director of
Operational Delivery.
SPS improved its approach to policy
formulation. A new format for policy
documentation was implemented
and centrally supported monitoring
arrangements were put in place
in relation to policy and practice
within prisons.
In response to the publication of the
Her Majesty’s Inspector of Prison
Scotland (HMIPS) ‘Standards for
Inspecting and Monitoring Prisons
in Scotland’ (March 2015), work was
undertaken in all establishments to
ensure compliance with the Standards.
HMIPS Inspections were carried out
in five establishments in 2015-16,
namely HMPs’ Dumfries, Addiewell
and Open Estate, as well as HMP and
YOIs Cornton Vale and Grampian.
Audit, Assurance and Continuous
Improvement
An Audit and Assurance Plan for
2015‑16 was developed to focus on key
business risks, linked to the Corporate
Risk Register. Overall, the Audit and
Assurance unit undertook 133 reviews
in the reporting period with 35 achieving
substantial assurance (26%), 62 were
awarded reasonable assurance (47%) and
36 studies given limited assurance (27%).
Risk management arrangements have
evolved and improved significantly
during the course of the reporting
year. Key improvements include the
production of an organisation wide Risk
Management Strategy and associated
guidance which was agreed by the EMG,
Advisory Board and the RMAC.
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A revised and refreshed corporate risk
register was implemented, reflecting
real and relevant strategic threats to the
business and providing more useable
and accurate management information.
The Corporate Risk Register was
considered at each RMAC meeting
to ensure risks were being managed
effectively. Details of the key risks which
could impact on the successful delivery
of SPS corporate objectives can be
found on page 7.
In addition, over 40 workshops on
risk management were delivered in
the year to improve risk awareness
and inform better department,
establishment and/or project risk
registers. More information on
the Risk and Control Framework
is contained in the Governance
Statement on page 28 of this report.
Estates
As a Scottish Government agency,
the Scottish Prison Service has a duty,
but also a desire, to fully support the
Government’s ambitions and to lead by
example in creating a responsible and
sustainable organisation for the benefit
of the people of Scotland. If collectively
as an organisation we do this well,
we don’t just play our part in meeting
the Scottish Government’s carbon
reduction targets, but we promote
sustainable practices and we become
more responsible to the partners that
we work in conjunction with and the
communities that we operate within.
Focusing on our sustainability has many
benefits for the current and future
ambitions of the SPS. Over the last five
years, we have met and exceeded our
sustainability targets as set out in our
2010-15 Carbon Management Strategy.
SPS’s initial Carbon Management
Strategy was reviewed to determine
how best the organisation can
constructively continue with this

strategy and actively contribute to the
Scottish Government’s wider objective
of reducing greenhouse gas emissions
across Scotland.
The Scottish Government has
introduced a new mandatory climate
change reporting requirement for
all public sector ‘major players’.
The introduction of mandatory public
sector reporting using a standardised
template is intended to help with Public
Bodies Duties compliance, encourage
continuous improvement and develop
a standard system to be used across
the public sector. Climate change
information submitted through this
reporting process will be collated and
assessed centrally by the Scottish
Government, with a Climate Change
Public Sector Report produced annually.
These new standardised arrangements
supersede existing SPS reporting
arrangements on climate change. SPS’s
2015-16 climate change report will be
published separately from the 2015-16
Annual Report and Accounts, and will be
available to view on the SPS website in
December 2016.
Information Systems and Strategy (ISS)
SPS’s Information Systems and Strategy
branch improved the prioritisation
of IT projects aligned to the Scottish
Government’s Digital Strategy.
Key deliverables included the upgrading
of the electronic filing system to
SharePoint 2013 and the introduction of
the electronic human resources system
(e-HR). SharePoint 2013 provides a fully
supported and expandable platform
for storage and sharing of Information.
E-HR now provides a single point of data
capture for all employee personal and
HR process related information which
is accessible, via a secure self‑service
portal, by employees, their line
managers and HR professionals.
The Voice over Internet Protocol (VOIP)
project made significant progress in
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2015-16, with the installation of the
infrastructure and number plan being
completed for HQ.
The infrastructure to provide video
conferencing facilities across the estate
was rolled out in 2015-16. Service Users
can now ‘attend’ certain court hearings
by video link, making the service more
efficient in terms of time, money and
reducing SPS’s carbon footprint. Video
conference facilities are also now
available to support family contact and
allow agents to speak with their clients
from their office as opposed to visiting
the prison in person.
Procurement
Procurement practitioners worked to
ensure that SPS properly discharged its
duties under the revised EU Procurement
Directives and the Procurement Reform
(Scotland) Act 2014.

and were published in July 2015.
Financial performance for 2015‑16 was
monitored and reported to the Board
and to Scottish Government throughout
the year. Further details on financial
performance for the year can be found
on page 20.
Legal Services
Following consultation with Victim
Organisations, SPS, in partnership with
Justice partners, co-produced and
published ‘Standards to Support Victims
of Crime’, thus ensuring consistency
in terms of how victims are supported
across the Justice sector. These
standards are now available on SPS’s
website. A joint report on compliance
with the standards of service was
published on our website on 30 April 2016.

SPS published a register of its
‘regulated’ contracts with the aim of
improving transparency.

Legal Services prepared a ‘Legal
Trends’ paper in Autumn 2015 which
summarised legal actions together with
mitigating action plans. This ensured
we met our target of providing this key
information on a six-monthly basis.

SPS’s preparations for the Scottish
Government’s new Procurement and
Commercial Improvement Programme
were assessed in February 2016 (this
included co-assessment by the Director
of Scotland Excel). A satisfactory rating
was achieved.

Freedom of Information
In 2015-16 SPS received 627 requests
for information under the Freedom
of Information (Scotland) Act 2002.
We also received 50 review requests.
Our performance, in terms of responding
within statutory timescales, was 97.2%.

In August 2015 SPS awarded a
national supply contract to deliver
revised canteen arrangements in all
our establishments to improve the
efficiency and effectiveness of the
service. A Canteen Control Board has
been set up to govern canteen price
lists. The new contract ensures that
prices are consistent across the SPS
estate and due to economies of scale,
provides greater value for money.

Developing a Person-centred
Asset-based Approach
Population Management
Joint work between the Operations and
Strategy and Innovation Directorates
produced a Population Management
Strategy Positioning Paper which
informed discussions with the Scottish
Government in June 2015. A subsequent
workshop with the Scottish Government
was held in October 2015 and this area
was confirmed as a priority area of focus
for SPS, with plans for a co-ordinated
approach to developing long-term
strategy and short-term requirements.

Finance
In line with the Annual Delivery Plan, the
statutory Annual Report and Accounts
for 2014-15 were signed in June 2015

Women and young people remain a
priority focus. The Consultation Report
on the Future of the Women’s Custodial
estate was published in October 2015.
Following this, a model design for the
women’s estate configuration was
developed along with products which
will aid the information and consultation
process with stakeholders and
communities.
In February 2016, it was announced that
more than half of the women in HMP &
YOI Cornton Vale would relocate to HM
YOI Polmont during Summer 2016 to
allow preparatory work to begin on the
construction of a new, smaller, national
facility on the grounds of HMP & YOI
Cornton Vale.
Implementation of the SPS Vision for
Young People in Custody continued to
make progress, with positive feedback
in both the staff survey (in respect of
the Learning Environment direction
and ethos), and the SPS Young People’s
survey in respect of an overall uplift
in health and wellbeing indicators.
Increasing numbers of staff have now
been trained to work with young people
on the development of their individual
positive futures plan, and roll out
throughout the establishment (whilst
still in the early stages) shows positive
signs of further improving relationships
and motivating young people to engage.
There has been substantial investment
to improve the learning facilities within
HM YOI Polmont to enable the young
people to participate in a broader
range of relevant activities and gain
skills for life and work. Whilst there is
much work still to do to raise levels of
participation and engagement across
the population, the range of activities
offered during 2015-16 more closely
meets the requirements of the senior
phase of Curriculum for Excellence.
This is evidenced by a mapping exercise
carried out by Education Scotland.
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Safer Communities
SPS’s information systems including
our prisoner records system, PR2,
and the Prison Resource Library
standards guidance and assurance
documents were upgraded in advance
of the extension of Multi Agency Public
Protection Arrangements (MAPPA)
in April 2016.
The Serious Organised Crime Strategy
Refresh was published in July. SPS now
has a structure in place to respond in
partnership with Police Scotland.
A new post was established in January
2016 to deliver a complementary
strategy for protecting public
resources, focusing on preventing
fraud, bribery and corruption.
As part of the Scottish Government
Parole Change project, SPS rolled out
phase one of the Parole Contents and
Dossier Service to help with the building
of each dossier for secure transfer to
the Parole Dossier Service (PDS).
Offender Outcomes and
Purposeful Activity
‘The Report of the Scottish Prison
Service Organisational Review’ and
‘Delivering a Strategy for Purposeful
Activity in the Scottish Prison Service’
set a clear direction for change.
Examples of the progress made
in 2015‑16 are detailed below.
Significant progress has been made
towards having an accredited suite of
offending behaviour programmes: both
Moving Forward: Making Changes and
the Self-change Programme (for sexual
and violent offenders respectively)
are accredited, and a further three
programmes have ‘partial’ accreditation
status – Constructs, Pathways and the
Youth Justice Programme. Work has
been ongoing on the re-development
of the CARE programme and this will be
submitted to SAPOR (Scottish Advisory
Panel for Offender Rehabilitation)
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during 2016-17. Specifically, in relation
to psychology, an independent
review of Psychological Services was
commissioned and, by year end, the
final report had been received. Work to
develop the recommendations made will
be taken forward in the next few months.
Significant work has been taken
forward in developing our Learning and
Skills environment. In support of new
national contracts we have secured the
extension of existing contracts which
will ensure that during the transition
(from one approach to our new
approach) the organisation will have
continuity of service. A new Learning
and Skills Strategy, which was published
in Spring 2016, will shape the direction
of future learning within prisons.
A national review of learning and skills
services has been undertaken across
the estate with individual establishment
appraisals and an overall report to
highlight areas of good practice and
innovation. The audit clearly
demonstrated that we are receiving
high quality learning and skills services.
The number of vocational and
employment related qualifications
gained in 2015-16 increased from
18,152 in 2014-15 to 19,893.
A pilot to identify Learning Difficulties
and Disabilities was carried out in
three prisons (HMP Glenochil, HMP &
YOI Cornton Vale & HM YOI Polmont)
during 2015 with our Learning and
Skills Partners and Forth Valley NHS.
This followed discussions with Scottish
Government on improving screening
processes to identify potential issues
of learning difficulties/disabilities.
The project included testing the utility
of the ‘do it profiler tool’, staff training,
data gathering and production of
a final report.
A Throughcare Support model is now
in place which provides motivated

short‑term prisoners with the
opportunity to access a service which
provides individual support during
the transition phase from prison back
into the community. In 2015-16 over
1,000 service users signed up for a
form of voluntary throughcare support.
SPS currently has 41 Throughcare
Support Officers covering
11 establishments across Scotland.
Across our prisons’ there has been
a widening of the range and scope
of activities available to prisoners.
This has seen establishments engaging
with their local communities, building
Social and Human capital. There are
positive examples of establishments
undertaking work for local charities
while supporting community
partnerships. These have included:
men from HMP Castle Huntly acting as
Marshalls at community events such
as 10k races and the Discovery Games;
Learners from HMP Perth holding a live
music event and recording a charity CD
with all proceeds going to CHAS; and
a number of our establishments doing
work and holding events to support
veterans’ charities.
SPS took part in the Community Jobs
Scotland (CJS) initiative for a second
year in 2015-16. CJS is a partnership
between Scottish Government and
the Scottish Council for Voluntary
Organisations (SCVO) supporting young
people aged 16 – 29 into sustainable
employment. The initiative offers
meaningful paid work experience in a
wide range of third sector employers
across Scotland. These opportunities
run for up to 12 months and are paid
at National Minimum Wage levels.
Following on from 103 such jobs
being taken up by individuals leaving
custody in 2014-15, a further 116 CJS
vacancies were filled by ex-offenders in
2015-16. Opportunities were offered
by 64 employers in 25 local authority
areas. At the time of writing, 67% of
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individuals were still employed by their
organisation, with only 7% having
returned to custody.

with convictions and ensure that
organisations who wish to engage with
SPS have relevant points of contact.

SPS have developed, tested and
evaluated new asset-based,
desistance-focused approaches to
case management for prisoners serving
short sentences and are currently,
under the direction of a Multi-Agency
Steering Group, developing options
for delivering these new approaches
on a national basis. Additionally, SPS is
working with partners to re-invigorate
all elements of our case management
processes for those prisoners subject
to post-release supervision in order
to improve the range of and access
to services that will assist prisoners’
community re-integration upon release
from custody. This approach is strong
evidence of improved partnership
working in order to achieve joint aims
supporting public protection in Scotland,
in line with Scottish Government’s
national priorities.

A Memorandum of Understanding has
been signed with Glasgow Together
to provide employment and training
to some prisoners liberated from HMP
Barlinnie. The roles and training will
be in construction skills to support
Glasgow Together’s planned building
programme over the next few years.
Employability and Enterprise continued
to develop the Community work
placement network which will create
a corporate standard for community
work opportunities. The team are
currently engaging with Network Rail,
NHS Lothian and Scottish Government.

As a key partner in Scottish
Government’s Parole Change Project,
which aims to modernise the system
of parole in Scotland, improve efficiency
and transparency in decision making
with public protection as a key driver,
SPS has implemented a new Parole
Dossier Service to support members
of the Parole Board for Scotland in
making informed decisions regarding
release from custody. This service was
implemented nationally on 1 April 2016.
Key areas of activity for employability
have included the establishment of an
Employer Guild Network (EGN) and
Leadership Group. The EGN is intended
to build a network of employers who
are interested in, and responsive
to, potentially working with those in
custody, or employing those who have
been in custody. The development of
the EGN will also serve to raise the public
profile around the employability of those

Health and Wellbeing
SPS recognises that a small but
growing proportion of the prisoner
population requires social care
assistance with activities of daily
living. The proportion of prisoners who
require social care support is expected
to rise as, in line with the general
population, the prison population
ages. Addressing the social care needs
of people in prison is a high priority
for SPS therefore a comprehensive
social care needs assessment across
the prison estate has been conducted
which will inform the development of
a long-term strategy for the future
management of prisoners with high
care needs. The results are currently
being analysed and will be used to
inform future strategic direction.
Work continues in the implementation
of the Better Health Better Lives
Health Improvement Framework,
the Spiritual Care, Religion and Belief
Strategy, and the Prevention of Suicide
in Prison Strategy.

challenges that New Psychoactive
Substances (NPS) pose to Scottish
prisons. This has included the delivery
of NPS awareness training to prisoners
and staff working in prisons. In addition,
SPS tested the effectiveness of a
naloxone administration training
programme for operational prison staff
at HMP Inverness during this reporting
year. Based on this pilot project, Health
and Wellbeing branch are currently
reviewing the options available, in
collaboration with partner agencies,
to develop future training for front
line staff to enable first on the scene
response to opiate overdose.
SPS have worked collaboratively with
partners to develop a training
programme for prison staff working
in Separation and Reintegration
Units (SRU), to provide them with the
appropriate skills and competencies
to effectively manage people with
challenging behaviour and to motivate
them to actively engage in the case
management process. The effectiveness
of this training was piloted at HMP Perth
and the findings will be used to inform
the development of a national training
programme and the results will inform
future strategic direction.
The organisation is working collaboratively
with Scottish Government and NHS
Health Boards to develop a national
strategy to embed a smoke free culture
across Scottish prisons.
Becoming a Learning Organisation
Research and Good Practice
The 15th Prisoner Survey was
conducted in August 2015 and the main
Prisoner Survey Bulletin and thematic
Bulletins on Women in Custody and
Young People in Custody were published
early 2016.

SPS are working collaboratively with
the Scottish Government and other
partners to respond to the emerging
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The Purposeful Activities agenda was
a key issue throughout the year and
research provided a solid evidence base
for the Learning and Skills Strategy
2016-21. It also worked in tandem with
Health and Wellbeing to contribute to
a social care needs review.

be used to help drive improvements in
organisational efficiency and the quality
of service delivery to those in our care.

Work continued to support programme
accreditation with logic models
and evaluation advice. A Practice
Review was undertaken on the
CARE (Controlling Anger Regulating
Emotions) programme.

The Strategy and Policy team actively
engaged in national policy activity.
This included the development of the
Strategy for Justice in Scotland, as
well as a substantial involvement in the
development of Community Justice
Outcomes, the associated Performance
and Improvement Framework as well
as the National Guidance and the
Transition Planning process.

External commissions included an
evaluation of the AIRMAPS (Asset
Inquiry Report) integrated case
management process; an evaluation of
the IAM (Initial Assessment Meeting)
screening process; a process evaluation
of the Constructs offending behaviour
programme; and a review of the
continuing role of the Open Estate.
SPS hosted an International Symposium
in May 2015 to discuss the future of
Women in Custody with experts from
around the world. The outcomes from
this three-day event contributed to the
next stage of planning and development
for the innovative new model of custody
for women in Scotland.
Research continued to provide the
Office of the Chief Executive with
evidence and advice to support his
varied public speaking engagements.
Research also liaised with EuroPris
on knowledge exchange and
benchmarking.
Strategy and Policy
The Strategic Development Board (SDB)
undertook development work on the
role of the 21st Century Prison Officer.
It is anticipated that recommendations
will be published in Summer 2016.
An innovation framework document
was produced and published, which will
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Horizon scanning to support improved
planning was also embedded within the
SDB function.

Promoting Public Confidence in SPS
Communications, Marketing and
Public Affairs
SPS’s new partnership magazine
‘Together’ was published in March
2016 and highlights some of the
successful partnerships that are in
place throughout the service. This
includes the Low Moss Public Social
Partnership in which we are working
with Turning Point Scotland and other
third sector partners to support
service users in their transition back
to their communities; and the Paws for
Progress project with Fife College and
the University of Stirling in which young
people in Polmont are taught how to
train rescue dogs for rehoming.

Developing a Collaborative
Outcome Focus
Partnership Collaboration
SPS continues to develop strong
partnerships with a range of partners
and in 2015-16 pioneered knowledge
exchange with stakeholders including
those in housing, health, social work
and academia. We continue to work in
partnership with Scottish Government,
which this year included reviewing
and improving the Directory of
Interventions.

The communications team successfully
worked with media partners to
strengthen the reputation of the
organisation and help deliver the vision
and mission of the SPS. In particular,
the communications team supported
broadcast media in delivering the
successful STV/SKY programme ‘First
and Last 24 hours in Custody’.

SPS recognises our status as statutory
partners in the new Community
Justice arrangements and plays a full
part in contributing at both strategic
and practical levels to the emerging
partnerships with a view to ensuring
that the journey from custody to
community for those in our care
achieves the best outcomes.

Partner events were run at most
establishments that allowed staff,
service users and their families to meet
and engage with third sector partners
who offer a range of supports.

SPS leadership capacity was deployed
in support of Local Partnership
Arrangements, through Governors
in Charge as part of Community
Justice Reform.

SPS’s social media presence greatly
expanded this year with the use of Twitter,
Facebook, LinkedIn and Google Business.

SPS’s Communications team also
engaged with schools and this was
mirrored within establishments where
opportunities to engage with the local
communities were created, including
school visits and participation in ‘Doors
Open’ days.
These examples highlight our
continuing efforts to build and maintain
relationships with a wide range of
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partners, which in turn helps to deliver
our objective of ensuring that SPS’s
ambitions for the lives of those in our
care are understood by the public and
our stakeholders.
Investing in SPS People
Human Resources (HR)
HR staff made progress in reviewing
a significant number of HR policies in
2015-16 and remain ahead of target in
consolidating and updating HR policies.
HR had a target to update eight policies
in 2015-16 and nine were updated.
The transfer of staff to the new Civil
Service Pension Scheme was completed
and significant progress was made
in embedding Workforce Planning
governance arrangements. The
Workforce Planning and Management
Group (WPMG) will be reconvened
in April 2016 and will meet monthly
thereafter.
Employee engagement levels for staff
are measured through an independent
annual survey and benchmarked
against other areas of the Civil Service.
The 2015 results, although two
percentage points lower than 2014,
were broadly similar to the civil service
average. A People Survey Advisory
Group was formed in response to
the 2015 survey results. Staff survey
actions are now incorporated into
business planning.
The ‘Our Five’ framework for
implementation of the staff survey
results was agreed and the top five
priorities for each functional area and
establishment completed. A review of
how staff are recognised for the work
they are carrying out was undertaken.
SPS continued to work in partnership
with the Trade Union Side (TUS) and the
Prison Governors Association (PGA).
The partnership agreement, Forward

Together, which was originally agreed
in 2003 was updated to reflect the
present-day position. SPS management
and the TUS work together to develop
and support an environment of trust,
respect and inclusivity at all levels,
in the shared belief that partnership
working will benefit the Scottish
public, the organisation and individual
employees. Both SPS and the trade
unions acknowledged requirement for
a clear procedure to exist that will bring
any disputes to a speedy conclusion.
For the Prison Officer’s Association
(Scotland) (POA(S)) and Prospect this
mechanism is known as the Voluntary
Industrial Relations Agreement (VIRA).
In the case of the Public and Commercial
Services Union (PCS) and PGA, the
process for the management of dispute
resolution is agreed on a case-by-case
basis. Further to the strong positive
relationship that has been developed
over the years as a result of our
partnership agreement with the POA(S),
in October 2015 the Cabinet Secretary
for Justice announced that the legal
recourse clause in the VIRA agreement
would be removed.
Learning and Development
A wide variety of training continues to
be designed and delivered both inhouse, and in collaboration with other
agencies, in order to ensure our staff
have the necessary skills to meet the
challenges of their roles. The nature and
delivery of training is evolving to meet
organisational need – in 2015-16, a total
of 10,996 hours of learning was logged
in online learning alone.
In classroom and experiential learning,
the pilot of a new training product for
staff working with Women in Custody
was delivered to 59 staff in HMP
Grampian and HMP Edinburgh, with
data from the qualitative evaluation
suggesting the vast majority of learners
understood and could articulate
transference of learning into the

workplace for themselves. Postcourse measures in the quantitative
evaluation saw a 73% increase in staff
understanding of the topics outlined in
Non-Invasive Security and Searching;
an 87% increase in understanding of
restorative justice; an 80% increase
in understanding positive family
relationships and attachment; and an
89% increase in staff understanding
desistance theory.
Staff working with young people at
HMYOI Polmont have accessed four
key training programmes in 2015-16.
389 staff were trained in Emotional and
Social Wellbeing, 147 were trained in
Learning Difficulties and Disabilities,
104 were trained in understanding more
about the Adolescent Brain and 137
were trained in understanding Trauma
Bereavement and Loss. In the early
phases of evaluating these sessions,
we can see a positive return on staff
feedback and on their application of
learning to the custodial environment.
The new entry qualification for Prison
Officers was agreed as an HE Diploma
in June 2015 and subsequently the
curriculum outline and learning
outcomes of 12 modules in the
240-credit qualification was concluded,
allowing next phase of design and
procurement to commence.
Leadership
SPS developed a Leadership Strategy
and a corresponding First Line
Manager development programme
was agreed. The design of a training
and development prospectus was
completed.
Governor in Charge (GIC) meetings
were restructured to focus on corporate
deliverables and the development
of the senior team. Profiling and a
two‑day workshop with GICs was held
to promote the development of a team
culture and approach.

    PERFORMANCE REPORT – ANALYSIS

SCOTTISH PRISON SERVICE
ANNUAL REPORT & ACCOUNTS 2015-2016

Equality and Diversity
Over the last year SPS has continued
to progress its Equality Outcomes,
focusing particularly on prisoner
equality monitoring where we have
made significant improvements in
the accuracy and completeness of
the diversity data we hold for those in
our care. 2015 also saw the electronic
Human Resources (e-HR) system go
live which includes the functionality to
capture staff diversity data. Baseline
reporting shows that there is work to be
done to increase declaration rates and
we will focus our efforts on this in the
coming year.
A new internal Equality and Diversity
Steering Group has been established
to advise the Chief Executive and SPS
Advisory Board on progress, issues,
and risks associated with equality and
diversity. It provides oversight of, and
decision making on, strategic equality
and diversity matters as they affect the
whole organisation, and ensures crossdirectorate collaborative working to
maximise the outcomes for equality
and diversity.
All Establishments must arrange at least
two events or other activities annually
to foster good relations between people
who share a protected characteristic
and others who do not share it, to tackle
prejudice and promote understanding.
This year HM YOI Polmont was selected
as a world’s first venue for Holocaust
Memorial Day to be held in a custodial
environment. The event consisted of a
reception, viewing the young people’s
creative work and a panel discussion
hosted by Professor Mukesh Kapila,
Inge Auerbacher and Claire Macaulay
(Scottish Action for Refugees). It was
attended by 14 young people and some
75 invited guests.

SPS is a Stonewall Diversity Champion
and in the 2016 Workplace Equality
Index SPS improved its ranking from
164th out of 397 to 109th out of 419
organisations. SPS also improved
our sector ranking to 10th out of 30.
SPS were honoured at Stonewall
Scotland’s Top Scottish Employers
launch event in February 2016 with
a Special Recognition Award for our
‘progressive’ Gender Identity and
Gender Reassignment Policy for People
in Custody.
Equality monitoring data shows a
slight increase in the overall proportion
of women employees in the SPS.
The gender balance in recruitment
and promotion is consistent with last
year’s data, with women representing
a higher proportion of employees
recruited or promoted compared with
overall workforce data. In 2015-2016
the gender balance of leavers was more
aligned to the overall gender balance of
the SPS than in the previous year.
In 2015-16 there was a threefold
increase in the proportion of disabled
people promoted compared with
the previous year. Twenty-one of
the candidates that applied and
progressed to the later stages of
the recruitment process had applied
to use the Guaranteed Interview
Scheme. The data shows an increased
number of categories for recording
ethnicity. This is because the e-HR
system introduced in 2015 uses an
expanded number of categories to
allow employees to be more specific
in identifying their ethnicity.

Results for the Year
The Statement of Comprehensive Net
Expenditure (SOCNE) for the year is
shown on page 46.
Operating Costs
SPS has reported a Net Operating Cost
for the Financial Year of £323,757k
(2014‑15 £313,771k). This is mainly
attributable to an increase in running
costs, which is a result of a reduction in
impairment reversals1 (note 8 in the
Notes to the Accounts) from previous
years and an increase in expenditure in
repairs and maintenance (note 3 in the
Notes to the Accounts). There are no
other significant movements to note in
comparison to previous year’s results.
Statement of Financial Position
The Statement of Financial Position is
on page 47.
The most significant movements on
the statement of financial position
from the prior year are:
a) Changes in property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets
During the year the SPS made
improvements to Buildings, Land,
purchased Plant and Equipment,
Computer Equipment, and
Intangible Assets at a cost of
£4,026k (2014-15 £22,880k).
Land and Buildings were either
valued or indexed at 31 March 2016
which resulted in an increase of the
asset value of £92,175k (2014-15
£61,540k).
In October 2015 the former site of
HMP Aberdeen was transferred by
Scottish Prison Service to Scottish
Government at a value of £4,500k.

1 An impairment reversal eliminates any losses charged to the SOCNE in prior years as a result of market variations.
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In addition, assets held for sale
decreased by £1,370k due to the
sale of the surplus land at HMP
Edinburgh in March 2016.
b) Provisions for liabilities
and charges
The accounting policy for provisions
and contingent liabilities is included
in note 1 in the Notes to the
Accounts and the sums provided for
are detailed in note 13 in the Notes
to the Accounts. These include
estimates of potential prisoner
compensation and related costs
where the cumulative provision as
at 31 March 2016 is £3,014k
(31 March 2015 £2,707k).

Also included are amounts payable
to former employees for loss of
earnings under the Civil Service
Injury Benefit Scheme where the
provision as at 31 March 2016 is
£9,008k (31 March 2015 £8,801k).
c) Trade and other payables
Included within creditors is an
amount of £97,459k (2014-15
£104,953k) representing the
imputed finance lease2 for
properties at HMP Addiewell and
HMP Kilmarnock and for vehicles
used in the Court Custody and
Prisoner Escorting Contract.

Financial Performance
The results of SPS will be recorded in
the Scottish Government Consolidated
Accounts for 2015-16. SPS is an
Executive Agency of the Scottish
Government. The Agency’s expenditure
forms a section within the Scottish
Government Justice Portfolio.
The Scottish Parliament approves
funds to the Scottish Government and
related bodies at the start of the year
and variations to these via the Autumn
Budget Revision (ABR) in October and a
Spring Budget Revision (SBR) in January.
A comparison of the SPS final Outturn
with the SBR for 2015-16 is detailed
below. The table does not include
notional charges of £96k (note 18 in the
Notes to the Accounts).
Actual
Outturn

Revised
Budget

Over/
(Underspend)

£000

£000

£000

265,731
2,614

270,011
37,512

(4,280)
(34,898)

268,345

307,523

(39,178)

63,382

63,250
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Provisions
Impairment

1,707
(5,747)

0
(10,000)

1,707
4,253

Total AME Expenditure

(4,040)

(10,000)

5,960

327,687

360,773

(33,086)

Operating Expenditure

Departmental Expenditure Limit (DEL)3
Net Resource Expenditure
Net Capital Expenditure
Total Departmental Expenditure Limit (DEL)
Total Outside DEL Expenditure

4

Annually Managed Expenditure (AME)5

Total Expenditure

2 Imputed finance lease represents the liability for the capital value of the PPP/PFI contracts.
3 DEL budget limits are set in the Spending Review.
4 Outside DEL expenditure includes costs associated with PPP/PFI contracts for HMP Addiewell and HMP Kilmarnock and the Court Custody and Prisoner
Escort Service Contract.
5 AME budgets are used to manage expenditure which is demand led or exceptionally volatile in a way that could not be controlled and where the expenditure is
so large that it could not be absorbed in DEL.
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Reconciliation of Actual Outturn to Net Operating Costs
The following table shows the reconciliation between the actual outturn and the net operating costs reported in the SOCNE.
The reconciliation takes account of non-cash charges and HM Treasury Consolidated Budgeting Guidance.
£000
Total Expenditure

£000
327,687

Add Notional charges (note 18)

96
327,783

Less capital additions (note 5 & 6)
Net capital expenditure

2,614

Book value on disposal

1,412
(4,026)

Net operating cost (SOCNE)

The Scottish Parliament approved
a budget for SPS of £393,148k,
details of which are contained in
the Budget (Scotland) Bill 2015-16
Supporting Document. This included
£30,000k capital budget which was
allocated to SPS for the development
of the women’s estate prior to the
announcement made by Cabinet
Secretary for Justice, in January
2015, that plans for a female prison
in Inverclyde would not go ahead.
During 2015-16, SPS were asked to
identify and deliver savings to support
other justice priorities. Details of the
ABR and SBR budget revisions made
by SPS can be found at www.gov.scot/
Topics/Government/Finance/18127/
Documents.
Overall, SPS operated within the
total budget approved at the SBR of
£360,773k. A DEL resource expenditure
underspend of £4,280k and a capital
underspend of £34,898k were reported.
The resource expenditure underspend
is attributable to both pay and running
costs. Anticipated expenditure against
running costs was lower than forecast at
SBR as a result of a halt on discretionary
spend and costs associated with
the sale of the surplus land at HMP
Edinburgh not materialising.
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323,757

The capital underspend is mainly a result
of a ministerial decision not to redeploy
£33,898k of the £36,386k capital budget
identified for release by SPS at the budget
revisions. The budget release was a
result of the announcements relating
to the women’s estate and a delay in the
acquisition of a site for HMP Highland.
As part of the Spring Budget Revision
process SPS are required to request
budget cover for Annually Managed
Expenditure (AME) to cover potential
increases of provisions and impairment
charges. SPS identified that tender
price indices (TPIs), which underpin the
indexation and valuation of the SPS
estate, were continuing to increase which
would result in impairment reversals.
For this reason and following advice from
Scottish Government, a credit AME
budget of £10,000k was requested.
During 2015-16, SPS valued nine
specialised properties and applied
indices to those that were not part of
this year’s valuation program. A rise
in the TPIs resulted in a net reversal
of previous years’ impairments.
Overall, net impairment reversals
total £10,770k. A reversal relating to
HMP Addiewell buildings (£5,464k)
scored against PFI/ PPP Expenditure.
An impairment charge relating to
the Women’s Regional Unit at HMP

Edinburgh (£441k) was scored against
the net resource expenditure DEL
budget. These adjustments reduced
the net impairment reversal scored
against AME to £5,747k. Further details
on impairments can be found in note 8
in the Notes to the Accounts.
Payment of Creditors
SPS’s policy is to pay all invoices, not
in dispute, in 30 days or the agreed
contractual terms if otherwise specified.
SPS aims to pay 100% of invoices,
including disputed invoices once the
dispute has been settled, on time in
these terms.
During the year ended 31 March 2016
SPS paid 99.9% (2014-15 99.4%) of all
invoices received within the terms of
its payment policy.
SPS has sought to achieve the Scottish
Government’s aspiration to pay
suppliers within 10 days. Payment
performance on this basis was 94.1%
(2014-15 94.9%).

Colin McConnell
Chief Executive
24 June 2016
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Chief Executive establishes the strategic direction of SPS
in conjunction with the Scottish Government; ensures public
accountability; assures probity/integrity; allocates resources
and monitors performance; reviews and manages risks facing
the SPS; and develops capability and performance while
ensuring sound corporate governance.
Appointment of the Chief Executive
The Chief Executive was appointed
by the Permanent Secretary of
the Scottish Government who is
empowered to make any changes
to the appointment. The Permanent
Secretary appointed Colin McConnell
as Chief Executive on 28 May 2012.
Board Members
The Chief Executive chairs an internal
Board which comprises five Executive
Directors and four independent
Non-Executive Directors (appointed by
Scottish Ministers for their expertise)
who collectively act in an advisory
capacity. The SPS Board’s role is to
support the Chief Executive in
providing leadership and in directing
and controlling the organisation in
the public interest.
The Chief Executive establishes the
strategic direction of SPS in conjunction
with the Scottish Government;
ensures public accountability; assures
probity/integrity; allocates resources
and monitors performance; reviews
and manages risks facing the SPS; and
develops capability and performance
while ensuring sound corporate
governance.
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SPS operates a three directorate model;
Operations, Strategy and Innovation
and Corporate Services. During the year
a transfer of functional responsibilities
from Corporate Services saw Estates
move to the management of the Interim
Director of Strategy and Innovation
and Information Technology to the
Interim Director of Operational
Support Services.
In the financial year 2015-16, the Board
met six times. Minutes of the SPS Board
meetings are published on the SPS
website http://www.sps.gov.uk/
Corporate/Publications/Publications.
aspx. A Register of Interests of
Directors is held centrally by SPS and
is reviewed annually.
The Risk Monitoring and Audit
Committee (RMAC) supports the
Chief Executive and the Board by
advising on the effectiveness of SPS
corporate governance arrangements
including risk management,
performance management, systems
of internal control and assurance
arrangements. The committee
comprises two Non‑Executive Directors
and two independent members,
John Graham and Gavin Scott.
The committee met on five occasions
during 2015-16 and is chaired
by John Graham.

Information Security
The SPS takes information security very
seriously. Information security is the
responsibility of the Senior Information
Risk Owner at Board level and is
governed by an Information Governance
Forum which meets every two months.
There is an Information Security Unit
based in Headquarters and a network
of trained Information Security Officers
throughout the SPS. Each Information
Security Officer holds regular meetings
with their local management to discuss
information security and to prepare an
action plan for their area.
Robust information security policies
are in place and staff are made aware
of these policies through leaflets and
presentations. All staff undertake a
compulsory Cabinet Office e-learning
course on protecting information.
An internal process for reporting
and investigating information security
and personal data related incidents is
in place. During 2015-16, the SPS did
not report any personal data related
incidents to the Information
Commissioner.
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Colin McConnell		
Chief Executive

Eric Murch
Director of Operations

Catherine Topley		
Director of Corporate Services

Ian Davidson
Director of Strategy & Innovation
to 26 July 2015

Michael Stoney
Interim Director of
Operational Delivery
from 29 June 2015

Fraser Munro
Interim Director of
Operational Support Services
from 15 June 2015

Teresa Medhurst		
Interim Director of
Strategy & Innovation
from 25 May 2015

Zoe van Zwanenberg
Non-Executive Director

Sue Browell
Non-Executive Director

Hugh Munro		
Non-Executive Director

Alex Macmillan		
Non-Executive Director
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In line with the SPS Records Management
Plan as agreed with the Keeper of the
Registers of Scotland, SPS addressed the
following during 2015-16:
> Development and implementation

of a business classification scheme,
retention schedule and policies
covering the management of paper
prisoner records.

> Development of an electronic

document management system
for prisoner records in order to
improve the management, auditing
and destruction of prisoner records
and to ensure that prisoner records
are preserved in the event of
an emergency.
> Transferring of prisoner records of

national importance to the National
Records of Scotland for permanent
preservation.
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Appointed Auditors
The accounts are audited by auditors
appointed by the Auditor General for
Scotland. Under section 21 of the
Public Finance and Accountability
(Scotland) Act 2000, the Auditor
General has determined that Audit
Scotland will be the appointed auditor
for SPS for the financial years 2011‑12
to 2015-16. Audit Scotland carried
out the audit of SPS’s accounts for
the financial year ending 31 March
2016. Audit Scotland determined that
the notional fee for this service was
£96,390 which relates solely to the
provision of statutory audit services
(2014-15 £96,390 for statutory audit
services and £15,000 for a local study).
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STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTABLE OFFICER’S RESPONSIBILITIES
Under section 19(4) of the Public
Finance and Accountability (Scotland)
Act 2000 the Scottish Ministers have
directed the Scottish Prison Service
(SPS) to prepare a statement of
accounts for each financial year in
the form and, on the basis, set out
in the Accounts Direction on page
69. The accounts are prepared on
an accrual basis and must give a
true and fair view of the SPS’s state
of affairs at the year-end and of its
income and expenditure, changes in
taxpayers’ equity and cash flows for
the financial year.
In preparing the accounts, the
Accountable Officer is required to
comply with the requirements of the
Government Financial Reporting Manual
and in particular to:
> observe the Accounts Direction

issued by the Scottish Ministers,
including the relevant accounting and
disclosure requirements, and apply
suitable accounting policies on a
consistent basis;

> make judgements and estimates

on a reasonable basis;
> state whether applicable accounting

standards as set out in the
Government Financial Reporting
Manual have been followed, and
disclose and explain any material
departures in the accounts; and
> prepare the accounts on a going

concern basis.
The Principal Accountable Officer of
the Scottish Government appointed
the Chief Executive of the SPS as the
Accountable Officer. As Accountable
Officer, the Chief Executive is
responsible to the Scottish Ministers.
The responsibilities of an Accountable
Officer, including responsibility for the
propriety and regularity of the public
finances and for the keeping of proper
records and for safeguarding SPS’s
assets, are set out in the Accountable
Officer’s Memorandum issued by the
Scottish Government.

Statement of the Disclosure of
Information to Auditors
So far as the Accountable Officer
is aware:
> there is no relevant audit information

of which SPS’s auditors are unaware;
and
> the Accountable Officer has taken all

steps that he ought to have taken to
make himself aware of any relevant
audit information, and to establish
that the agency’s auditors are aware
of this information.
Accountable Officer’s Confirmation
The Accountable Officer confirms:
> that the Annual Report and Accounts

as a whole are fair, balanced and
understandable; and
> that he takes personal responsibility

for the annual report and accounts
and the judgements required for
determining that they are fair,
balanced and understandable.
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Scope of Responsibilities
As Accountable Officer, I have
responsibility for maintaining a sound
system of internal control that supports
the achievement of the SPS’s policies,
aims and objectives set by Scottish
Ministers whilst safeguarding the public
funds and departmental assets for
which I am personally responsible, in
accordance with the responsibilities
assigned to me.
As Accountable Officer, I am
accountable to Scottish Ministers for
the operation of the SPS; for advising
them on policy on prisons; for the
management of SPS; and for planning
its future development.
Governance Framework
SPS is an Executive Agency of the
Scottish Government, and is required to
comply with the Scottish Public Finance
Manual. The SPS Framework Document
sets out the policy and resources within
which SPS operates, including delegated
limits. This document was refreshed in
line with best practice guidance and in
consultation with Scottish Government
and was published in March 2016.
The Framework Document can be found
on SPS’s website at the following link
http://www.sps.gov.uk/Corporate/
Publications/Publication-3925.aspx.
The Chief Executive is supported by
an Advisory Board, comprising four
Non‑Executive Directors and five
internal Executive Directors. During
the year the Advisory Board met on
six occasions.
The role of the Advisory Board is to
undertake a supportive, advisory,
questioning and enabling function.
It supports the Chief Executive in the
discharge of his role by providing a safe,
challenging forum to bring issues to a
well-informed group of Executive and
Non‑Executive Directors to help him
reach defensible and well-informed

decisions. The role of Advisory Board
includes:
> Strategy – constructively challenging

and contributing to the development
of strategy, suggesting ambitious
and customer-focused targets and
innovative approaches for delivery.
> Performance – scrutinising the

performance of management
in meeting goals and objectives
and monitoring the reporting of
performance.
> Risk – satisfying themselves of

the reliability and integrity of risk
management and internal control
arrangements. Providing assurance
that the framework for organisational
governance is operating effectively.
The Board is supported in its work
by the Risk Monitoring and Audit
Committee (RMAC), which is chaired
by an independent member of the
Committee. The RMAC is responsible
for overseeing risk, control and
governance arrangements in place
throughout SPS, and considers SPS
exposure to fraud and risk and its
capacity to respond. The RMAC met
on five occasions during 2015-16.
The meetings were attended by the
Chief Executive, relevant Executive
and Non-Executive Directors,
independent members and both
internal and external auditors.
Risk and Control Framework
The SPS has adopted a risk
management strategy which aligns with
the transformational vision, mission and
values of SPS, whilst also supporting the
operational delivery of its core business
and contributing to the wider Strategy
for Justice in Scotland.
The Risk Management Strategy
of the SPS sets the requirements
of compliance with principles and
approaches to risk management that
are to be executed by relevant parties.
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The main objective of this strategy
is to ensure a unified and effective
organisational mechanism of risk
management within the SPS. This risk
management strategy forms part of the
day-to-day management process.
The SPS risk strategy adopts best
practice in the identification, evaluation,
and control of risks to ensure that
they are eliminated or reduced to an
acceptable level. The risk management
strategy also allows the SPS to exploit
opportunities and where appropriate,
take managed and understood risks to
better achieve its objectives.
The review of risk is an integral part
of monthly reporting cycles and
the Executive Management Group
meets to formally consider risk on a
bi‑monthly basis. Outwith these cycles,
SPS believes that risk management
is a critical component of effective
business management and utilises risk
management techniques to better
inform decision-making.
The risk profile of SPS is continually
evolving and as such, risk management
arrangements are actively monitored
and reviewed to gain assurance that
the approach remains effective and
appropriate.
Risk Assessment
Risk owners (individuals responsible
for managing the risk) identify risks
relating to their areas of responsibility
and assess the risk to successful
achievement of objectives according
to the likelihood of occurrence and the
severity of impact.
Risk registers are reviewed on a
monthly basis. Existing risks are
challenged in relation to their scoring
and effectiveness of control and
mitigation measures. New and
emerging risks are also considered and
suitable additions are recorded in the
appropriate risk registers.
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Risk Control/Mitigation Plans
All risks, once identified, are required to
have a suitable mitigation plan in place
to reduce the risk of exposure to the
SPS. Risk owners design and implement
appropriate risk control/mitigation
plans, which provide proper and timely
responses to the risks identified.
These plans are monitored on a regular
basis and their effectiveness is reviewed
and assessed.
The Purpose of the System of
Internal Control
The system of internal control is
designed to manage risk to an acceptable
level, rather than eliminate all risk of
failure to achieve policies, aims and
objectives. It can therefore only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance
of effectiveness. The system of internal
control is based on an ongoing process
designed to identify and prioritise the
risks to the achievement of departmental
policies, aims and objectives; to evaluate
the likelihood of those risks being
realised and the impact should they be
realised; and to manage them efficiently,
effectively and economically. The system
of internal control has been in place in
the Scottish Prison Service for the year
ended 31 March 2016 and up to the date
of the approval of the Annual Report
and Accounts and accords with Scottish
Government guidance.
Review of Effectiveness
As Accountable Officer, I have
responsibility for reviewing the
effectiveness of the systems of internal
control and corporate governance.
My review is informed by:
> The work of internal audit who submit

regular reports to the SPS RMAC
which includes the Head of Audit’s
independent and objective opinion
on the adequacy and effectiveness
of the SPS systems of internal control,
together with recommendations for
improvement. In the course of the
year, internal audit reviews identified

36 areas of limited assurance out
of the 133 studies undertaken.
Significant areas of limited assurance
relate to certain financial controls
at four establishments (18 areas
of limited assurance) and financial
reporting of new projects (seven areas
of limited assurance). Action plans
have been developed for each of these
areas and progress will be followed up
by internal audit in early 2016-17;
> Executive managers, who have

responsibility for the development and
maintenance of the internal control
framework;
> Meetings of the SPS Board within the

financial year;
> Meetings of the Executive

Management Group to deal with
operational and other issues;
> Monitoring and reporting of

performance against key performance
indicators;
> Twice-yearly Statements of Assurance

from every Executive Director,
covering the key systems for which
they are responsible. The contents
of these Statements of Assurance
focus on the management of key risks
and identification of emerging issues
which could impact on the systems of
internal control. These Statements of
Assurance are reviewed by the Head
of Audit and Assurance and the Chief
Executive and the effectiveness of this
process is reported to the RMAC;
> Annual report to the Board from the

Chairman of the RMAC concerning
the corporate governance and control
environment;
> Attendance of the Chairman of

the RMAC at Board meetings.
This commenced in March 2016;
> Progress against the

recommendations contained in the
Audit Scotland review of governance
arrangements that was carried out
in 2014-15. The report concluded
that in general SPS Advisory

Board and RMAC are operating
with a good level of challenge.
It further concluded that there
was evidence of a positive change
in the organisation’s response to
scrutiny and willingness to implement
change and to pursue continuous
improvement. However, the report
advised that there was a need for the
organisation to implement a more
formal governance structure in terms
of process and support systems.
It made 24 recommendations in this
regard in the form of an action plan.
After consideration of this report, a
review was initiated which extended
to: updating the SPS Framework
Document and; the preparation of
new remits for the Advisory Board, the
Executive Management Group (EMG)
and the RMAC, to reflect best practice
and meet the needs of SPS;
> Regular reports from internal

assurance providers on the adequacy
and effectiveness of the system
of internal control, together with
recommendations for improvements
and the action management
proposes taking to implement
these recommendations;
> External Audit who report to the RMAC

on our controls through management
letters and other reports;
> Progression of management

action from internal and external
audit reports;
> Regular reviews of progress on the

Annual Delivery Plan by the Board;
> Implementing measures for SPS

to ensure information security
and standardise and enhance the
management of information risk.
The Director of Operational Support
Services is the organisation’s Senior
Information Risk Owner (SIRO) who
chairs the Information Governance
Forum and which met seven times
during 2015-16 for this purpose;
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> The Change Portfolio Board, who met

expenditure and income. It ensures
assets are properly safeguarded,
that proper accounting records are
maintained and ensures compliance
with current legislation and
Government financial procedures;

six times during 2015-16 to review
key projects and who report regularly
to the SPS Executive Group and
SPS Advisory Board;

> The use of Project Management and

gateway review processes to manage
major projects and a review of key
projects by Internal Audit;

> In the year 2015-16, the Head of

Audit and Assurance offered an
overall reasonable level of assurance
based on his review of the corporate
governance and control environment,
management of risk and reliance
placed on the work of other external
assurance providers.

> The Fraud Response Group (FRG),

which focuses on fraudulent activity
within the organisation at an early
stage, reviews the lessons learned,
promotes awareness of fraudulent
activity and influences policy
development. The FRG met on four
occasions during the financial year
and will deliver its annual report to
the June 2016 meeting of the RMAC;

> The SPS Framework Document

which sets out requirements
for SPS in respect of inspection,
maladministration and complaints,
both for prisoners and members of
the public. Under the Prison Rules
2011, the prisoner complaints
process is based on the good
practice complaints handling model
recommended by the Scottish
Public Services Ombudsman (SPSO).
The Whistleblowing Policy was
refreshed in July 2015; it outlines the
process for raising complaints and how
they will be dealt with. SPS maintains
a confidential and secure
Whistleblowing email address to which
staff and members of the public can
report areas of concern. There is a
similar facility for members of staff
or the public to report suspected
fraud and details of this confidential
telephone line are contained in the
Fraud Response Policy;
> The SPS Financial Policy and Guidance
Manual provides standard authority
for establishments, SPS College,
Central Stores and Headquarters
Directorates. Compliance with its
contents is mandatory and maintains
propriety in the control of Government

As part of our ongoing work and as part
of the assurance process, we continue
to identify areas of improvement in
our governance and internal controls
framework I am content that my review,
informed by all of the items detailed
above, provides overall substantial
assurance of the effectiveness of the
systems of governance and internal
control within SPS.
Significant Governance Issues
Follow-Up of Prior Year Significant
Issues
HMP Grampian
A project, managed by the Operations
Directorate Programme, set up to
address the operational issues, has
successfully put measures in place to
increase the population in a controlled
and measured manner during
2015‑16. The population at 31 March
2016 was 429.
Significant progress was made
during 2015-16 to improve issues
around recruitment and retention
of staff. Specific workforce planning
arrangements were implemented,
including a targeted recruitment
campaign. Experienced officers from
other establishments were on site during
the year, to provide capability and stability
and a formal monitoring and coaching role
to the staff in HMP Grampian.
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The project has entered a formal
closedown phase and it is anticipated
from April 2016 that ongoing
operational issues will be considered
business as usual.
Strategy for the Management of
Women in Custody
The Cabinet Secretary for Justice set
out his vision for a new custodial estate
for women in June 2015, comprising
of a small national prison for around
80 women offenders with the most
complex needs or highest security risk
and five community-based custodial
units (CCUs) each of which will provide
20 places. These units will be based as
close as possible to the communities
from which the women come.
The new national prison will be
built on the grounds of the existing
HMP YOI Cornton Vale.
Information Technology
SPS continue to rely heavily on IT to
support day-to-day operations with
development and maintenance of
the infrastructure a key aspect of
continued success. A review of IT led
to a reprioritisation of key deliverables
during 2015-16. Issues were identified
that related to our HR and Procurement
projects. The HR project has been
formally closed down following
delivery of all modules. In moving this
to business as usual the completed
modules will be implemented on a
scheduled basis. The eProcurement
project has remained on hold during
2015-16. Whilst it remains on hold,
there is a risk of non compliance with
the EC Directive on e-invoicing.
SPS is cognisant of this risk and it
will be considered alongside other
investment priorities during 2016-17.
There have been no other significant
governance issues identified during
the year in relation to the overall
governance framework.
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REMUNERATION REPORT

The remuneration of senior civil servants is set in accordance
with the Civil Service Management Code available at
www.civilservice.gov.uk and with independent advice from
the Senior Salaries Review Body (SSRB).
Service Contracts
The Constitutional Reform and
Governance Act 2010 requires Civil
Service appointments to be made
on merit on the basis of fair and
open competition. The Recruitment
Principles published by the Civil
Service Commission specify the
circumstances when appointments
may be made otherwise.
Unless otherwise stated below,
the officials covered by this report
hold appointments which are openended. Early termination, other than
for misconduct, would result in the
individual receiving compensation
as set out in the Civil Service
Compensation Scheme.
Further information about the work
of the Civil Service Commission can
be found at
www.civilservicecommission.org.uk.

Remuneration Policy
The remuneration of senior civil
servants is set in accordance with
the Civil Service Management Code
available at www.civilservice.gov.uk
and with independent advice from the
Senior Salaries Review Body (SSRB).
In reaching its recommendations, the
Review Body has regard to the following
considerations:
> the need to recruit, retain and

motivate suitably able and qualified
people to exercise their different
responsibilities;
> regional/local variations in labour

markets and their effects on the
recruitment and retention of staff;
> Government policies for improving

the public services including the
requirement on departments to meet
the output targets for the delivery of
departmental services;
> the funds available to departments

as set out in the Government’s
departmental expenditure limits; and
> the Government’s inflation target.
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The Review Body takes account of
the evidence it receives about wider
economic considerations and the
affordability of its recommendations.
Further information about the work
of the Review Body can be found at
www.ome.uk.com.
The remuneration of the Executive
Board members is determined under
the Civil Service Management Code.
The remuneration of Non-Executive
Board members is agreed with them
on appointment.
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Remuneration (including salary) and Pension Entitlements
The following sections provide details of the remuneration and pension interests of the SPS Board Members.
Remuneration (salary and pensions)
Single total figure of remuneration
Pension benefits to nearest
£0001

Salary £000

Total to nearest £000

2015-16

2014-15

2015-16

2014-15

2015-16

2014-15

110-115

110-115

35

23

145-150

130-135

E MURCH
Director of Operations

80-85

80-85

25

17

105-110

95-100

C TOPLEY
Director of Corporate Services

80-85

80-85

32

302

110-115

110-115

75-80

9

68

30-35

140-145

-

28

-

90-95

-

-

20

-

85-90

-

(80-85 Full Year
Equivalent)

-

22

-

85-90

-

Z VAN ZWANENBERG
Non-Exec Director

5-10

5-10

-

-

5-10

5-10

S BROWELL
Non-Exec Director

0-5

0-5

-

-

0-5

0-5

H MONRO
Non-Exec Director

0-5

0-5

-

-

0-5

0-5

A McMILLAN
Non-Exec Director

5-10

0-5

-

-

5-10

0-5

C McCONNELL
Chief Executive

I DAVIDSON3
Director of Strategy & Innovation
F MUNRO4
Interim Director of Operational Support Services
T MEDHURST5
Interim Director of Strategy & Innovation
M STONEY6
Interim Director of
Operational Delivery

20-25

(75-80 Full Year
Equivalent)

60-65

(75-80 Full Year
Equivalent)

65-70

(80-85 Full Year
Equivalent)

60-65

1. The value of pension benefits accrued during the year is calculated as (the real increase in pension multiplied by 20) less (the contributions
made by the individual). The real increase excludes increases due to inflation or any increase or decrease due to a transfer of pension rights.
2. The Pension Benefit for 2014-15 has been restated due to a recalculation being carried out for individuals where a part year figure is required
or where they are Nuvos members.
3. I Davidson transferred from SPS on 26 July 2015.
4. F Munro Interim Director of Operational Support Services from 15 June 2015.
5. T Medhurst Interim Director of Strategy & Innovation from 25 May 2015.
6. M Stoney Interim Director of Operational Delivery from 29 June 2015.
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Salary
‘Salary’ includes gross salary; overtime;
recruitment and retention allowances;
and any other allowance to the extent
that it is subject to UK taxation.
This report is based on accrued
payments made by the SPS and thus
recorded in these accounts.
Benefits In Kind
The monetary value of benefits in kind
covers any benefits provided by the
employer and treated by HM Revenue
& Customs as a taxable emolument.
There were no benefits in kind paid
during the year (2014-15: nil).

Pay Multiples
Reporting bodies are required to
disclose the relationship between
the remuneration of the highestpaid director in their organisation
and the median remuneration of the
organisation’s workforce.
The banded remuneration of the
highest-paid director in SPS in the
financial year 2015-16 was £110,000115,000 (2014-15, £110,000-115,000).
This was four times (2014-15, four) the
median remuneration of the workforce,
which was £28,891 (2014-15, £28,604).

Bonuses
Bonuses are based on performance
levels attained and are made as part
of the appraisal process. Bonuses
relate to the performance in the year
in which they become payable to the
individual. There were no bonuses paid
during the year (2014-15: nil).
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In 2015-16, no employees received
remuneration in excess of the highestpaid director. Remuneration ranged
from £12,235 to banded remuneration
of £110,000-£115,000 (full time
equivalents) (2014-15, £12,070 to
banded remuneration of £110,000 £115,000 (full time equivalents)).
Total remuneration includes salary,
non‑consolidated performance-related
pay and benefits-in-kind. It does not
include severance payments, employer
pension contributions and the cash
equivalent transfer value of pensions.

35

Pension Benefits
Accrued pension
at age 65 as at
31/3/2016 £000

Real increase in
pension at age 65

CETV at
31/3/16

CETV at
31/3/15

Real increase
in CETV

Pension 45-50
Lump sum 140-145

Pension 0-2.5
Lump sum 5-7.5

992

887

31

Pension 30-35
Lump sum 90-95

Pension 0-2.5
Lump sum 2.5-5

671

601

23

Pension 10-15

Pension 0-2.5

97

72

8

I DAVIDSON
Director of Strategy & Innovation

Pension 20-25
Lump sum 60-65

Pension 0-2.5
Lump sum 0-2.5

360

348

4

F MUNRO
Interim Director of
Operational Support Services

Pension 25-30
Lump sum 80-85

Pension 0-2.5
Lump sum 2.5-5

503

448

22

T MEDHURST
Interim Director of Strategy
& Innovation

Pension 30-35
Lump sum 90-95

Pension 0-2.5
Lump sum 2.5-5

596

540

16

M STONEY
Interim Director of
Operational Delivery

Pension 25-30
Lump sum 70-75

Pension 0-2.5
Lump sum 0-2.5

427

376

14

C McCONNELL
Chief Executive
E MURCH
Director of Operations
C TOPLEY
Director of Corporate Services

Z VAN ZWANENBERG
Non-Exec Director

No Pension Entitlement

S BROWELL
Non-Exec Director

No Pension Entitlement

H MONRO
Non-Exec Director

No Pension Entitlement

A McMILLAN
Non-Exec Director

No Pension Entitlement

The information disclosed in the tables above has been audited by SPS’s auditors. The other sections of the Remuneration
Report were reviewed by the auditors to ensure they were consistent with the financial statements.
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Civil Service Pensions
Pension benefits are provided
through the Civil Service pension
arrangements. From 1 April 2015 a new
pension scheme for civil servants was
introduced – the Civil Servants and
Others Pension Scheme or alpha,
which provides benefits on a career
average basis with a normal pension
age equal to the member’s State
Pension Age (or 65 if higher). From that
date all newly appointed civil servants
and the majority of those already in
service joined alpha. Prior to that date,
civil servants participated in the
Principal Civil Service Pension Scheme
(PCSPS). The PCSPS has four sections:
three providing benefits on a final
salary basis (classic, premium or classic
plus) with a normal pension age of 60;
and one providing benefits on a whole
career basis (nuvos) with a normal
pension age of 65.
These statutory arrangements are
unfunded with the cost of benefits met
by monies voted by Parliament each
year. Pensions payable under classic,
premium, classic plus, nuvos and alpha
are increased annually in line with
Pensions Increase legislation. Existing
members of the PCSPS who were
within 10 years of their normal pension
age on 1 April 2012 remained in the
PCSPS after 1 April 2015. Those who
were between 10 years and 13 years
and five months from their normal
pension age on 1 April 2012 will switch
into alpha sometime between 1 June
2015 and 1 February 2022. All members
who switch to alpha have their PCSPS
benefits ‘banked’, with those with
earlier benefits in one of the final salary
sections of the PCSPS having those
benefits based on their final salary when
they leave alpha. (The pension figures
quoted for officials show pension
earned in PCSPS or alpha –
as appropriate. Where the official has
benefits in both the PCSPS and alpha
the figure quoted is the combined value

of their benefits in the two schemes.)
Members joining from October 2002
may opt for either the appropriate
defined benefit arrangement or
a ‘money purchase’ stakeholder
pension with an employer contribution
(partnership pension account).
Employee contributions are salaryrelated and range between 3% and
8.05% of pensionable earnings for
members of classic (and members of
alpha who were members of classic
immediately before joining alpha) and
between 4.6% and 8.05% for members
of premium, classic plus, nuvos and all
other members of alpha. Benefits in
classic accrue at the rate of 1/80th
of final pensionable earnings for each
year of service. In addition, a lump sum
equivalent to three years initial pension
is payable on retirement. For premium,
benefits accrue at the rate of 1/60th
of final pensionable earnings for each
year of service. Unlike classic, there is
no automatic lump sum. Classic plus
is essentially a hybrid with benefits
for service before 1 October 2002
calculated broadly as per classic and
benefits for service from October 2002
worked out as in premium. In nuvos a
member builds up a pension based on
his pensionable earnings during their
period of scheme membership. At the
end of the scheme year (31 March) the
member’s earned pension account is
credited with 2.3% of their pensionable
earnings in that scheme year and the
accrued pension is uprated in line with
Pensions Increase legislation. Benefits
in alpha build up in a similar way to
nuvos, except that the accrual rate in
2.32%. In all cases members may opt
to give up (commute) pension for a
lump sum up to the limits set by the
Finance Act 2004.
The partnership pension account is
a stakeholder pension arrangement.
The employer makes a basic
contribution of between 3% and
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12.5% up to 30 September 2015 and
8% and 14.75% from 1 October 2015
(depending on the age of the member)
into a stakeholder pension product
chosen by the employee from a panel
of providers. The employee does not
have to contribute, but where they
do make contributions, the employer
will match these up to a limit of 3%
of pensionable salary (in addition to
the employer’s basic contribution).
Employers also contribute a further
0.8% of pensionable salary up to
30 September 2015 and 0.5% of
pensionable salary from 1 October 2015
to cover the cost of centrally-provided
risk benefit cover (death in service and
ill‑health retirement).
The accrued pension quoted is the
pension the member is entitled to
receive when they reach pension age,
or immediately on ceasing to be an
active member of the scheme if they
are already at or over pension age.
Pension age is 60 for members of
classic, premium and classic plus,
65 for members of nuvos, and the higher
of 65 or State Pension Age for members
of alpha. (The pension figures quoted
for officials show pension earned in
PCSPS or alpha – as appropriate. Where
the official has benefits in both the
PCSPS and alpha the figure quoted is
the combined value of their benefits in
the two schemes, but note that part of
that pension may be payable from
different ages.)
Further details about the Civil Service
pension arrangements can be found
at the website
www.civilservicepensionscheme.org.uk
The Cash Equivalent Transfer Value
(CETV)
A Cash Equivalent Transfer Value (CETV)
is the actuarially assessed capitalised
value of the pension scheme benefits
accrued by a member at a particular
point in time. The benefits valued
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are the member’s accrued benefits
and any contingent spouse’s pension
payable from the scheme. A CETV is a
payment made by a pension scheme
or arrangement to secure pension
benefits in another pension scheme or
arrangement when the member leaves
a scheme and chooses to transfer
the benefits accrued in their former
scheme. The pension figures shown
relate to the benefits that the individual
has accrued as a consequence of
their total membership of the pension
scheme, not just their service in a senior
capacity to which disclosure applies.
The figures include the value of any
pension benefit in another scheme or
arrangement which the member has
transferred to the Civil Service pension
arrangements. They also include any
additional pension benefit accrued to

the member as a result of their buying
additional pension benefits at their
own cost. CETVs are worked out in
accordance with The Occupational
Pension Schemes (Transfer Values)
(Amendment) Regulations 2008 and
do not take account of any actual or
potential reduction to benefits resulting
from Lifetime Allowance Tax which may
be due when pension benefits are taken.
Real Increase in CETV
This reflects the increase in CETV that
is funded by the employer. It does not
include the increase in accrued pension
due to inflation, contributions paid by
the employee (including the value of
any benefits transferred from another
pension scheme or arrangement) and
uses common market valuation factors
for the start and end of the period.

Compensation for Loss of Office
Compulsory, Flexible or Approved
Early Retirement Terms
There were no SPS Board members
that left on Compulsory, Flexible or
Approved Early Retirement terms.
Compulsory or Flexible Early
Severance Terms
There were no SPS Board members
that left on Compulsory or Flexible
Early Severance terms.
Voluntary Exit, Voluntary Redundancy
or Compulsory Redundancy Terms
There were no SPS Board members
that left on Voluntary Exit, Voluntary
Redundancy or Compulsory
Redundancy terms.
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STAFF REPORT
Staff Numbers and Related Costs
The following sections provide details of the average number of persons employed by SPS and the associated costs.
These sections have been subject to audit by SPS’s auditors.
2015-16

Restated
2014-15

£000

£000

Wages and salaries (permanent staff)
Social security costs (permanent staff)
Other pension costs (permanent staff)

125,213
9,062
26,273

127,972
9,636
22,583

Sub total

160,548

160,191

2,649

3,059

163,197

163,250

(246)

(221)

162,951

163,029

Staff Costs

Non permanent staff
(including agency, temporary and inward secondments)
Total
Less recoveries in respect of outward secondments
Total net costs
The figures for 2014-15 have been restated to show the costs for non-permanent staff separately.

Staff costs for 2014-15 included a
payment of £6,549k which related
to a one-off payment of £2,000 to
operational staff in pay ranges C, D
and E. These payments were made to
prison officers and operational first
line managers following an agreement
reached between the Prison Officers
Association (Scotland) and SPS.
The Principal Civil Service Pension
Scheme (PCSPS) and the Civil Servant
and Other Pension Scheme (CSOPS) –
known as ‘alpha’ are unfunded multiemployer defined benefit scheme but
the Agency is unable to identify its share
of the underlying assets and liabilities.
The Scheme Actuary valued the scheme
as at 31 March 2012. You can find
details in the resource accounts of the
Cabinet Office: Civil Superannuation
www.civilservice.gov.uk/my-civilservice/pensions.
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For 2015-16, employers’ contributions
of £26,198k were payable to the PCSPS
(2014-15 £22,544k) at one of five
rates in the range 20.0% to 27.9% of
pensionable earnings, based on salary
bands. The Scheme Actuary reviews
employer contributions usually every
four years following a full scheme
valuation. The contribution rates are
set to meet the cost of the benefits
accruing during 2015-16 to be paid
when the member retires and not the
benefits paid during this period to
existing pensioners.
Employees can opt to open a
partnership pension account, a
stakeholder pension with an employer
contribution. Employers’ contributions
of £78k (2014-15 £36k) were paid
to one or more of a panel of three
appointed stakeholder pension
providers. Employer contributions
are age-related and range from 3% to
12.5% of pensionable earnings up to

30 September 2015 and from 8% to
14.75% of pensionable earning from
1 October 2015. Employers also match
employee contributions up to 3% of
pensionable earnings. In addition,
contributions of £2.6k which is 0.8%
of pensionable pay up to 30 September
2015 and 0.5% of pensionable pay
from 1 October 2015, were payable to
the PCSPS to cover the cost of future
provision of lump sum benefits on death
in service or ill health retirement of
these employees.
Contributions due to the partnership
pension providers at the statement
of financial position date were nil.
Contributions prepaid at that date
were nil.
During the reporting year 13 persons
(2014-15 21 persons) retired early on
ill-health grounds: the total additional
accrued pension liabilities in the year
amounted to £22k (2014-15 £31k).
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Average Number of Persons Employed
The average number of whole-time equivalent persons employed during the year was as follows.
2015-16

Restated
2014-15

Directly employed
Other

4,464
7

4,384
7

Total

4,471

4,391

Persons employed

Directly employed includes non-permanent staff.
2014-15 staff numbers have been restated to include inward secondees.

Reporting of Civil Service and other compensation schemes – exit packages
Number of compulsory
redundancies

Number of other departures
agreed

Total number of exit
packages by cost band

<£10,000

-

2 (4)

2 (4)

£10,000 – £25,000

-

3 (3)

3 (3)

£25,000 – £50,000

-

2 (2)

2 (2)

£50,000 – £100,000

-

0 (0)

0 (0)

£150,000 – £200,000

-

0 (0)

0 (0)

Total number of exit packages

-

7 (9)

7 (9)

Total resource cost/£

-

£136,829
(£153,379)

£136,829
(£153,379)

Exit package cost band

Comparative data is shown (in brackets) for previous year.

Redundancy and other departure costs have been paid in accordance with the provisions of the Civil Service Compensation
Scheme, a statutory scheme made under the Superannuation Act 1972. Exit costs are accounted for in full in the year the
decision of departure is agreed. Where the agency has agreed early retirements, the additional costs are met by the agency
and not by the Civil Service pension scheme. Ill-health retirement costs are met by the pension scheme and are not
included in the table.
The above table includes exit costs relating to Voluntary Exit Schemes (VES) approved by Cabinet Office and capability
schemes approved by SPS. During 2015-16 there were no VES exits (2014-15, no exits) and seven exits under capability
schemes at a cost of £137k (2014-15, nine exits at a total cost of £153k).
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Staff Composition
The following tables provide data on the staff composition within SPS based on the average headcount during 2015-16.
Senior Civil Servants by Band

2015-16

2014-15

SCS – Level 1/Deputy Director
SCS – Level 2/Director

3
1

3
1

Total

4

4

Male

2015-16
Female

Total

Male

2014-15
Female

Total

Senior Civil Servants
Directors
Employees

2
2
3,319

2
0
1,326

4
2
4,645

3
0
3,354

1
0
1,270

4
0
4,624

Total

3,323

1,328

4,651

3,357

1,271

4,628

Further information on staff numbers and recruitment is contained in Appendix 6.

Occupational Health
SPS promotes employee wellbeing
through various initiatives supported
by a number of partners, including
the Scottish Centre for Healthy
Working Lives, our Occupational
Health Provider and our Employee
Wellbeing Programme.
The Healthy Working Lives Award
(HWLA) was launched in February
2007, replacing Scotland’s Health
at Work (SHAW). The programme
encompasses a wide range of topics
enabling organisations to select
those that are most relevant to the
workforce, including health promotion,
occupational health and safety, health
and the environment, mental health and
wellbeing, community involvement and
employability. As a result of wellbeing
initiatives undertaken in 2015-16, seven
SPS establishments have maintained
the Gold award, with two of these
establishments having also maintained
the Mental Health Commendation
Award, three establishments have
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achieved or maintained the Silver
Award, and three establishments have
achieved, maintained or are working
towards the Bronze Award.
During 2015-16, Average Working
Days Lost (AWDL) has decreased to
10.2, which is a fall of 0.3 AWDL per
employee on the 2014-15 figure of
10.5. In the 11 years since the Managing
Attendance and Absence Policy and
Procedure (MAAPP) was introduced,
consistent application of the policy has
reduced absence by 13.6%.
Through our Occupational Health
(OH) provider, SPS delivers employee
inoculations, lifestyle screening (carried
out on a three-year cycle), annual
health assessments for night workers,
and continues to look at new ways to
work in partnership to reduce absence.
This has resulted in a six-month trial
introducing onsite OH clinics within four
establishments, which will commence
in April/May 2016.

Staff Policies Applied
During the Financial Year
The SPS is committed to ensuring
that disabled staff enjoy equality of
opportunity within the SPS, and that all
of our processes and decision making
are free of unlawful discrimination.
The Disability Equality Policy is available
on the website www.sps.gov.uk/
Corporate/Information/Disability.aspx.
The SPS offers the Guaranteed
Interview Scheme which guarantees an
interview for disabled candidates who
meet the minimum criteria for the post.
Off-payroll Engagements
There were no off-payroll engagements
during 2015-16.
External Consultancy Costs
The Public Service Reform (Scotland)
Act 2010 imposes mandatory duties
on SPS to publish information on
certain types of expenditure, including
consultancy costs. This is reported
annually and is published on the
website www.sps.gov.uk/Corporate/
Information/SPSExpenditure.aspx.
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PARLIAMENTARY ACCOUNTABILITY REPORT
Losses and Special Payments
The following losses and special payments have been included in the accounts and have been audited by SPS’s auditors:
2015-16

2014-15

Cases

£000

Cases

£000

Losses Statement
Cash losses
Losses of accountable stores
Fruitless payments

166
298
0

40
(8)
0

208
319
1

15
246
2

Total

464

32

528

263

Special Payments
Special payments

260

1,256

333

1,198

Losses of accountable stores show a net gain, largely due to lower values of losses being reported during the year and
instances of stock being returned to store.
Special payments include amounts settled for prisoner compensation and their related costs (see notes to the accounts 13 and 17).
Other Notes
On 22 June 2015, the Cabinet Secretary for Justice announced his plans for the future of the custodial estate for women.
The announcement confirmed that there would be a new national unit at HMP & YOI Cornton Vale and community custody
units throughout Scotland. Existing plans for the Women’s Regional Unit at HMP Edinburgh would not go ahead. As a result of
this change in Scottish Government policy, SPS recorded a constructive loss of £441k which relates to the design fees.
Remote Contingent Liabilities
In addition to contingent liabilities reported within the meaning of IAS 37, the agency is also required to report liabilities for
which the likelihood of a transfer of economic benefit in settlement is too remote to meet the definition of contingent liability.
SPS has nothing to report in respect of these matters.

Colin McConnell
Chief Executive
24 June 2016
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
Independent auditor’s report
to Scottish Prison Service, the
Auditor General for Scotland and
the Scottish Parliament
I have audited the financial statements
of Scottish Prison Service for the
year ended 31 March 2016 under the
Public Finance and Accountability
(Scotland) Act 2000. The financial
statements comprise the Statement
of Comprehensive Net Expenditure,
the Statement of Financial Position,
the Statement of Cash Flows, the
Statement of Changes in Taxpayers’
Equity and the related notes.
The financial reporting framework that
has been applied in their preparation
is applicable law and International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)
as adopted by the European Union,
and as interpreted and adapted by
the 2015-16 Government Financial
Reporting Manual (the 2015-16 FReM).
This report is made solely to the
parties to whom it is addressed in
accordance with the Public Finance
and Accountability (Scotland) Act
2000 and for no other purpose.
In accordance with paragraph 125 of
the Code of Audit Practice approved by
the Auditor General for Scotland, I do
not undertake to have responsibilities
to members or officers, in their
individual capacities, or to third parties.

Respective responsibilities of
Accountable Officer and auditor
As explained more fully in the
Statement of the Accountable
Officer’s Responsibilities, the
Accountable Officer is responsible
for the preparation of the financial
statements and for being satisfied
that they give a true and fair view, and
is also responsible for ensuring the
regularity of expenditure and income.
My responsibility is to audit and express
an opinion on the financial statements
in accordance with applicable law and
International Standards on Auditing
(UK and Ireland) as required by the
Code of Audit Practice approved by the
Auditor General for Scotland. Those
standards require me to comply with
the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical
Standards for Auditors. I am also
responsible for giving an opinion on the
regularity of expenditure and income in
accordance with the Public Finance and
Accountability (Scotland) Act 2000.

Scope of the audit of the
financial statements
An audit involves obtaining evidence
about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements sufficient
to give reasonable assurance
that the financial statements are
free from material misstatement,
whether caused by fraud or error.
This includes an assessment of:
whether the accounting policies
are appropriate to the body’s
circumstances and have been
consistently applied and adequately
disclosed; the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates
made by the Accountable Officer;
and the overall presentation of
the financial statements. It also
involves obtaining evidence about
the regularity of expenditure and
income. In addition, I read all the
financial and non-financial information
in the annual report and accounts
to identify material inconsistencies
with the audited financial statements
and to identify any information that
is apparently materially incorrect
based on, or materially inconsistent
with, the knowledge acquired by me
in the course of performing the audit.
If I become aware of any apparent
material misstatements, irregularities,
or inconsistencies I consider the
implications for my report.
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Opinion on financial statements
In my opinion the financial statements:

Opinion on regularity
In my opinion in all material respects:

> give a true and fair view in accordance

> the expenditure and income in the

with the Public Finance and
Accountability (Scotland) Act 2000
and directions made thereunder by
the Scottish Ministers of the state of
the body’s affairs as at 31 March 2016
and of its net expenditure for the year
then ended;
> have been properly prepared in

accordance with IFRSs as adopted by
the European Union, as interpreted
and adapted by the 2015/16 FReM;
and
> have been prepared in accordance

with the requirements of the Public
Finance and Accountability (Scotland)
Act 2000 and directions made
thereunder by the Scottish Ministers.

financial statements were incurred
or applied in accordance with any
applicable enactments and guidance
issued by the Scottish Ministers, the
Budget (Scotland) Act covering the
financial year and sections 4 to 7 of
the Public Finance and Accountability
(Scotland) Act 2000; and
> the sums paid out of the Scottish

Consolidated Fund for the purpose
of meeting the expenditure shown in
the financial statements were applied
in accordance with section 65 of the
Scotland Act 1998.
Opinion on other prescribed matters
In my opinion:

Matters on which I am required
to report by exception
I am required to report to you if,
in my opinion:
> adequate accounting records have

not been kept; or
> the financial statements and the part

of the Remuneration and Staff Report
to be audited are not in agreement
with the accounting records; or
> I have not received all the information

and explanations I require for my
audit; or
> the Governance Statement does

not comply with guidance from the
Scottish Ministers.
I have nothing to report in respect
of these matters.

> the part of the Remuneration and

Staff Report to be audited has been
properly prepared in accordance with
the Public Finance and Accountability
(Scotland) Act 2000 and directions
made thereunder by the Scottish
Ministers; and
> the information given in the

Performance Report for the
financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent
with the financial statements.
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Angela Cullen (CPFA)
Assistant Director
Audit Scotland
4th Floor
102 West Port
Edinburgh
EH3 9DN
28 June 2016
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE NET EXPENDITURE
for the year ended 31 March 2016
2015-16

Restated
2014-15

Note

£000

£000

2

(7,188)

(7,491)

Staff Report

162,951

163,029

Running costs

3

127,971

118,105

Other current expenditure

4

32,001

31,539

Total expenditure

322,923

312,673

Operating cost

315,735

305,182

8,022

8,589

323,757

313,771

2015-16

2014-15

£000

£000

Net gain on revaluation of property, plant and equipment

(81,405)

(45,176)

Total comprehensive net expenditure

242,352

268,595

Income
Income from all sources
Expenditure
Staff costs 

Interest payable and similar charges
Net operating cost

Other Comprehensive Net Expenditure

Items that will not be reclassified to net operating costs:

The notes on pages 50 to 68 form part of these accounts.
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE NET EXPENDITURE
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
as at 31 March 2016
2016

2015

Note

£000

£000

5
6
10

1,093,906
1,194
96

1,037,601
1,167
106

1,095,196

1,038,874

5.1

0

1,370

9

2,377

2,489

Trade and other receivables

10

6,126

5,839

Cash and cash equivalents

11

757

545

9,260

10,243

1,104,456

1,049,117

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Other receivables
Total non-current assets
Current assets
Assets classified as held for sale
Inventories

Total current assets
Total assets
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables

12

(27,954)

(35,606)

Provisions

13

(4,271)

(3,772)

(32,225)

(39,378)

1,072,231

1,009,739

Total current liabilities
Total assets less net current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Other payables

12

(93,490)

(97,854)

Provisions

13

(10,493)

(9,685)

(103,983)

(107,539)

968,248

902,200

Total non-current liabilities
Total assets less total liabilities
Taxpayers’ equity and other reserves
General fund

SOCTE

723,655

730,179

Revaluation reserve

SOCTE

244,593

172,021

968,248

902,200

Total equity

Colin McConnell
Chief Executive
24 June 2016
The Chief Executive authorised these financial statements for issue on 24 June 2016.
The notes on pages 50 to 68 form part of these accounts.
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
for the year ended 31 March 2016
2015-16

Restated
2014-15

£000

£000

(323,757)

(313,771)

18

96

111

3

24,557

17,794

560

(248)

8,005

8,569

Note
Cash flows from operating activities
Net operating cost
Notional charges
Depreciation and impairment
Loss/(Profit) on sale of tangible assets
Interest payable in net operating cost for financing
Decrease/(Increase) in inventories
(Increase)/Decrease in trade receivables

112

(135)

(277)

1,297

11,125

5,524

1,307

(1,432)

(278,272)

(282,291)

(16,157)

(28,983)

(490)

(611)

852

951

(15,795)

(28,643)

From Consolidated Fund

312,804

328,731

Capital element of payments in respect of finance leases and on balance sheet
PFI/PPP contracts

(10,520)

(9,271)

Increase in trade payables
Use of provisions
Net cash outflow from operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of intangible assets
Proceeds of disposal of property, plant and equipment
Net cash outflow from investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities

Interest element of finance leases and on balance sheet PFI/PPP contracts
Net financing
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents in the period

(8,005)

(8,569)

294,279

310,891

212

(43)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period

11

545

588

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period

11

757

545

The notes on pages 50 to 68 form part of these accounts.
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN TAXPAYERS’ EQUITY
for the year ended 31 March 2016
General Fund

Revaluation
Reserve

Total
Reserves

£000

£000

£000

Balance at 1 April 2014

711,448

130,505

841,953

Net funding from Scottish Government

328,731

0

328,731

(313,771)

45,176

(268,595)

111

0

111

3,660

(3,660)

0

Balance at 31 March 2015

730,179

172,021

902,200

Net funding from Scottish Government

312,804

0

312,804

(323,757)

81,405

(242,352)

Note

Comprehensive Net Expenditure for the year
Auditors’ remuneration

18

Transfers between reserves

Comprehensive Net Expenditure for the year
Auditors’ remuneration
Transfer of land to Scottish Government
Transfers between reserves
Balance at 31 March 2016

18

96

0

96

(4,500)

0

(4,500)

8,833

(8,833)

0

723,655

244,593

968,248

The notes on pages 50 to 68 form part of these accounts.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
1. Statement of Accounting Policies
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the 2015-16 Government Financial Reporting Manual (FReM)
issued by HM Treasury and the accounts direction issued by Scottish Ministers under section 19(4) of the Public Finance and
Accountability (Scotland) Act 2000. The accounting policies contained in the FReM apply International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) as adapted or interpreted for the public sector context. Where the FReM permits a choice of accounting policy, the accounting
policy which is judged to be the most appropriate to the particular circumstances of SPS for the purpose of giving a true and fair view
has been selected. The particular policies adopted by SPS are described below. They have been applied consistently in dealing with
items that are considered material to the accounts.
The accounts are prepared using accounting policies, and, where necessary, estimation techniques, which are selected as the most
appropriate for the purpose of giving a true and fair view in accordance with the principles set out in International Accounting Standard
8: Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors. Changes in accounting policies which do not give rise to prior year
adjustments are reported in the relevant note.

Accounting Convention
The accounts have been prepared under the historic cost convention modified to account for the revaluation of property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets.

Key Sources of Judgement and Estimation Uncertainty
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
The Agency makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The Agency makes judgements in applying accounting policies. The estimates, assumptions
and judgements that have a significant risk of causing material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the financial statements within the next financial year are addressed below within the individual accounting policies and notes to the
accounts.
The most significant estimates made by the Agency relate to the valuation of SPS properties and the sums recorded in provisions
and contingent liabilities for staff and prisoner claims at 31 March. To assist the Agency with the estimates in valuing property the
SPS commission professionally qualified firms to undertake a full revaluation of dwellings and other buildings at five-yearly intervals
with a rolling programme of valuations in the years in between.
The SPS engage the services of the Scottish Government Legal Directorate, the Department of Work and Pensions and other
legal firms to assist in preparing estimates of potential liabilities for staff and prisoner claims. The SPS also engage the services of
professional accountancy firms to assist in the estimates for PFI/PPP Contracts and other Service Concession Arrangements.

Change in Accounting Estimate
Indexation
The indexation adjustment recorded in the 2015-16 accounts is calculated as the movement between the opening index as at
31 March 2015 and the closing index as at 31 March 2016. The index applied to buildings is based on a quarterly forecast which
may be subject to change. The actual index as at 31 March 2015 was higher than previously forecast.
The total net impairment reversal credited to the Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure is £10,770k.
The impact of the revision to the opening building index included within this total is £7,459k.

Property, Plant and Equipment
Title to the freehold land and buildings shown in the accounts is held in the name of the Scottish Ministers.

Dwellings and Other Buildings
Dwellings and other buildings are shown at fair value less subsequent depreciation. Any accumulated depreciation at the date of
revaluation is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset, and the net amount is restated to the revalued amount
of the asset.
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The SPS commission professionally qualified firms to undertake a full revaluation of dwellings and other buildings at five-yearly
intervals. They follow the principles set out in the RICS Red Book and value on the basis of Open Market Value, Existing Use Value,
Depreciated Replacement Cost or Discounted Cash Flow as appropriate under RICS guidance for determining fair value.
In the intervening years, both specialised and non-specialised properties are valued on a rolling programme revaluing, on average,
four establishments each year. Appropriate indices provided by the Valuer are used to restate values in the intervening years between
full valuations. The next full valuation shall take place on 31 March 2017. The normal threshold for capitalisation of buildings is £1,000.

Plant and Equipment, Fixtures and Fittings, Motor Vehicles and Information Technology
Depreciated historic cost has been used as a proxy for the fair value of plant and equipment, fixtures and fittings, motor vehicles
and information technology. All of the assets in these categories have low values and short useful economic lives which realistically
reflect the life of the asset and a depreciation charge which provides a realistic reflection of consumption. The normal threshold for
capitalisation of assets in these categories is £1,000.

Assets Under Construction
Assets under construction are carried at the costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary
for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Assets under construction are transferred to either the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment or intangible assets when completed and ready for use.

Revaluation Reserve
Increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of property, plant and equipment are credited to the revaluation reserve in
taxpayers’ equity. Decreases that offset previous increases of the same asset are charged against the revaluation reserve directly
in equity; all other decreases, including permanent diminutions as a result of a clear consumption of economic benefits or service
potential, are charged to the statement of comprehensive net expenditure.
Depreciation is charged to expenditure on the revalued amount of assets. An element of the depreciation therefore arises due to the
increase in valuation and is in excess of the depreciation that would be charged on the historical cost of assets. The amount relating
to this excess is a realised gain on revaluation and is transferred from the revaluation reserve to the general fund.

Depreciation
Land held under freehold is not depreciated.
Assets under construction are not depreciated until the asset under construction is capable of operating in the manner intended by
management.
Depreciation is provided on all other tangible and intangible fixed assets at rates calculated to write off the valuation, less estimated
residual values, of each asset evenly over its expected useful life. Asset lives are assessed on an asset by asset basis as follows:
Freehold buildings

Not exceeding 80 years

Buildings held under PFI/PPP contracts

Not exceeding 80 years

Fixed Plant and Equipment

Not exceeding 40 years

Fixtures and Fittings

5 years

Motor Vehicles

5 years

Moveable Plant and Equipment

5 years

Information Technology

2 years

Software

2 years

Plant and Equipment held under a finance lease

unexpired term of lease

Motor Vehicles held under Court Custody and
Prisoner Escort Service Contract

unexpired term of lease

Information Technology held under a finance lease

unexpired term of lease

The asset’s residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each statement of financial position date.
An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.
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Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised in the
statement of comprehensive net expenditure.
When revalued assets are sold, the amounts included in the revaluation reserve are transferred to the general fund.

Assets Held for Sale
A property is derecognised and held for sale under IFRS5, Non-Current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations when
all of the following requirements are met:
> It is available for immediate sale;
> A plan is in place, supported by management and steps have been taken to conclude the sale; and
> It is actively marketed and there is an expectation that the sale will be made in less than 12 months.

Assets held for sale include assets where SPS intends and expects to sell within one year from the date of classification of held for
sale. Assets classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amounts immediately prior to their classification as
held for sale and their fair value less costs to sell. Assets classified as held for sale are not subject to depreciation or amortisation.

Donated Assets
In Accordance with IAS16 Property, Plant and Equipment and the HM Treasury Financial Reporting Manual, Donated Assets are
capitalised at their fair value on receipt and this value is recognised as income and taken to the Statement of Comprehensive Net
Expenditure. The donated assets are revalued, depreciated and subject to impairment review in the same way as non-current assets.
Subsequent revaluations are taken to the revaluation reserve. Where the donator has imposed a condition that the future economic
benefits embodied in the donation are consumed as specified by the donor, or returned to them, then the receipt is treated as
deferred income.

Intangible Assets
Intangible assets are valued on a historic cost basis.
Future economic benefit has been used as the criteria on assessing whether an intangible asset meets the definition and recognition
criteria of IAS38 where assets do not generate income. IAS38 defines future economic benefit as, ‘revenue from the sale of products
or services, cost savings, or other benefits resulting from the use of the asset by the entity’.
Amortisation is applied at rates calculated to write off the cost by equal instalments over the estimated useful life.

Financial Instruments
The SPS has considered its exposure to the following risks from the use of financial instruments:

Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the funding risk to SPS that liabilities cannot be met when they fall due or can only be met at an uneconomic price.
SPS has no borrowings and relies primarily on funding from the Scottish Government for its cash requirements. SPS is therefore,
not exposed to liquidity risks.

Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to SPS if a debtor or counter party fails to meet its contractual obligations and arises from the
trade receivables and other debtors.
SPS carries out appropriate credit checks on potential customers before significant sales transactions are entered into in order to
mitigate the credit risk from any single counterparty. The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying value of
trade receivables on the statement of financial position.

Market Risk
Market risk is the risk to SPS that the value of an investment will decrease due to moves in market factors.
SPS has no material deposits and all material assets and liabilities are denominated in sterling. SPS is not, therefore, exposed to
interest rate or currency risk.
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Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, cash balances held by the Government Banking
Service and other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less.
Inventories
Stock and work in progress are valued as follows:
> Finished goods are valued at the lower of cost or, where materially different, current replacement cost and net realisable value; and
> Work in progress is valued at the lower of cost, including appropriate overheads, and net realisable value.

Research and Development
Expenditure on research and development is treated as an operating cost in the year in which it is incurred.

Service Concessions and Private Finance Contracts
SPS assesses the contracts that utilise assets to determine if the contract represents a service concession arrangement under
the conditions of IFRIC 12, Service Concession Arrangements. Contracts which meet the recognition criteria are recognised in the
statement of financial position.

PFI/PPP Contracts
PFI/PPP transactions are accounted for in accordance with IFRIC 12, which sets out how PFI/PPP transactions are to be accounted for
in the private sector.
The SPS has awarded Public Private Partnership (PPP) contracts, to design, construct, manage and finance prisons at HMP Kilmarnock
and HMP Addiewell. Both contracts were let for 25 year operating periods, commencing in March 1999 for HMP Kilmarnock and in
December 2008 for HMP Addiewell.
Assets and liabilities that are assessed to be on balance sheet are measured as follows:
> Where the contract is separable between the service element, the interest charge and the infrastructure asset, the asset will be

measured in accordance with IAS 17 Leases, with the service element and the interest charge recognised as incurred over the term
of the concession arrangement; and
> Where there is a unitary payment stream that includes infrastructure and service elements that cannot be separated, the

various elements will be separated using estimation techniques including obtaining information from the operator or using the
fair value approach.
The SPS recognises a liability for the capital value of the contract. That liability does not include the interest charge and service
elements, which are expensed annually through the statement of comprehensive net expenditure.
Assets are subsequently measured consistently with other assets in their class using IAS16, Property, Plant and Equipment, adopting
an appropriate asset revaluation approach. Liabilities are measured using the appropriate discount rate, taking account of the
reduction arising from capital payments included in the unitary payment stream. Any revenue received by SPS is recognised in line
with IAS18, Revenue.
In both of the projects, the financial models supplied by each project operators do not separately identify a costed lifecycle
maintenance programme. SPS has therefore opted not to set aside amounts from the unitary payment as payment for lifecycle
maintenance. Instead, when the project operators replace a capital asset, the fair value of this replacement item is recognised as
property, plant and equipment, balanced by a credit to the revaluation reserve. The replaced asset’s existing value is written out of
property, plant and equipment and either impaired or debited to the revaluation reserve.
In accordance with IAS 17, contingent rentals are defined as the ‘portion of the lease payments that is not fixed in amount but is based
on the future amount of a factor that changes other than with the passage of time’. Examples of contingent rents include payments
governed by movements in future price indices. Both financial models calculate contingent rent as follows:
> The change in cash unitary charge arising from indexation is offset against the impact of applying the same indexation factor to the

real terms operating and lifecycle costs; and
> Any remaining cash difference between the change in unitary charge and the indexation factor’s effect on operating costs is charged

to contingent rent.
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Other Service Concession Arrangements
The Court Custody and Prisoner Escort Service Contract meets the requirements of IFRIC 12 and are recognised in these accounts as
a service concession arrangement.
The infrastructure assets related to this contract are recognised as non-current assets. These assets are accounted for in the same
manner as other assets within the same class. The initial recognition of service concession infrastructure assets is at the Contractor’s
estimate of the assets’ fair value.
The useful economic life was determined as the shorter of the duration of the contract, or the life of the asset. The interest rate used
was derived by comparing the total payments under the contract to the element which constitutes capital repayment.
Where the SPS meets the controls test under IFRIC 12, the underlying assets are recognised on the statement of financial position.
For leased assets, the finance lease is treated according to IAS17 Leases, and the asset and corresponding liability is capitalised.
This includes the deferred residual interest which is recognised as a long-term liability and reflects the liability to make future capital
payments to acquire the vehicles at the end of the contract period.

Employee Benefits
Short-term Employee Benefits
Salaries, wages and employment-related payments are recognised in the year in which the service is received from employees.
The cost of annual leave and flexible working time entitlement earned but not taken by employees at the end of the year is recognised
in the financial statements to the extent that employees are permitted to carry-forward leave into the following year.

Pension Costs and Other Post-retirement Benefits
Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the Principal Civil Service Pension Scheme (PCSPS) and the Civil
Servant and Other Pension Scheme (CSOPS), which are unfunded multi-employer defined benefit schemes but the SPS is unable to
identify its share of the underlying assets and liabilities. The schemes are accounted for as a defined contribution schemes under the
multi‑employer exemption permitted in IAS19. The SPS recognises the expected cost of these elements on a systematic and rational
basis over the period during which it benefits from employees’ services by payment to the PCSPS/CSOPS of amounts calculated on
an accruing basis. Liability for payment of future benefits is a charge on the PCSPS/CSOPS.
In respect of the defined contribution schemes, the SPS recognises the contribution payable for the year. Early severance payment
obligations are expensed in the year in which the decision of the departure is agreed. Additional pension liabilities arising from early
retirements are not funded by the scheme except where the retirement is due to ill health. The full amount of the liability for the
additional costs is charged to the outturn statement at the time the SPS commits itself to the retirement, regardless of the method
of payment.
In previous years, the SPS met the additional costs in respect of employees who retired early by paying the required amounts annually
to the PCSPS over the period between early departure and normal retirement date. The SPS provided for this in full when the early
retirement programme became binding by establishing a provision for the estimated payments.

Termination Benefits
SPS accounts for termination benefits in accordance with IAS 19 Employee benefits. Termination benefits are payable as a result of
a decision to terminate an employee’s employment before the normal retirement date, and the liability is recognised when the offer
of the benefits can no longer be withdrawn at the earlier of i) acceptance of the offer by the employee or ii) when a legal, regulatory
or contractual restriction on the ability to withdraw the offer takes effect.

Leases
Finance Leases
In accordance with IAS 17 Leases, where substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of a leased asset are borne by SPS, the asset
is recorded as Property, Plant and Equipment and a corresponding liability is recorded. The value at which both are recognised is the
lower of the fair value of the asset or the present value of the minimum lease payments. Assets held under finance leases are valued
at their fair values and are depreciated over the remaining period of the lease in accordance with IFRS.
The asset and liability are recognised at the inception of the lease, and are de-recognised when the liability is discharged, cancelled
or expires. The annual rental is split between the repayment of the liability and a finance cost. The annual finance cost is calculated by
applying the implicit interest rate to the outstanding liability and is charged to interest payable in the statement of comprehensive
net expenditure.
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Operating Leases
Other leases, that are not finance leases, are regarded as operating leases and the rentals are charged to expenditure on a
straight‑line basis over the term of the lease. Operating lease incentives received are added to the lease rentals and charged to
expenditure over the life of the lease.

Leases of Land and Buildings
Where a lease is for land and buildings, the land component is separated from the building component and the classification for each
is assessed separately. Leased land is treated as an operating lease unless title to the land is expected to transfer.

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities
In accordance with IAS37 provisions, including provisions for staff and prisoner claims, are recognised in the statement of financial
position when the SPS has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefit will be required to settle the obligation. If the effect is material, provisions are determined by discounting the
expected, risk adjusted and future cash flows using the discount rate prescribed by HM Treasury.

Related Party Transactions
Material related party transactions are disclosed in the notes to the accounts in line with the requirements of IAS24.

Value Added Tax
The majority of services provided by the SPS fall outwith the scope of Value Added Tax (VAT). However, the manufacturing and sale
of goods to external bodies is subject to VAT on both inputs and outputs. The SPS can recover this input VAT as well as VAT on certain
contracted-out services. Income is shown in the accounts net of recoverable VAT.

Insurance
With the exception of Public Private Partnership contracts, no outside insurance is affected against fire, explosion, common law,
third party and similar risks, except where there is a statutory requirement to do so.

Third Party Assets
SPS holds as custodian monies belonging to third parties. These assets are not recognised on the Statement of Financial Position and
are disclosed within the notes to the accounts.

Segmental Reporting
The SPS currently operates three segments, namely;
> Public Prisons;
> Private Prisons; and
> Court Custody and Prisoner Escort Services (CCPES).

IFRS 8 Segmental Reporting requires operating segments to be identified on the basis of internal reports about components of the
SPS that are regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision maker in order to allocate resources to the segments and assess their
performance. The SPS reports segmental information within its consolidated operating cost statements which are prepared on the
basis of its portfolios.

Accounting Standards Issued But Not Yet Effective
There are new accounting standards that have been issued but have not yet been applied by the SPS in these financial statements.
The new standards that are considered relevant to SPS and the anticipated impact on the accounts are as follows:
> IFRS 16 – Leases

This standard has been created to harmonise the rules regarding leases between the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB)
and the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) in the United States. It will supersede the existing IAS 17 but will not come into
effect until January 2019. The extent to which this new standard will apply to the public sector has not been fully interpreted by the
Financial Reporting Advisory Board.
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2. Income from all Sources

Income from sales
Rental income
General revenue

2015-16

2014-15

£000

£000

1,064

1,207

8

7

1,708

1,743

0

248

4,408

4,286

7,188

7,491

2015-16

Restated
2014-15

£000

£000

Repairs and maintenance

16,246

14,015

Depreciation and impairment

24,557

17,794

560

0

Profit from sale of fixed assets
Income from prisoner’s canteen

3. Running Costs

Loss on sale of fixed assets
Other staff-related costs

6,015

5,650

Heat, light, telephone etc.

11,618

11,554

7,150

7,002

1,442

1,016

373

279

17

25

PFI/PPP service charges

32,484

32,939

PFI/PPP contingent rent

3,026

2,592

20,981

20,778

3,406

4,350

96

111

127,971

118,105

Rates
Rentals in operating leases
– Land and buildings
– Other
Finance Leases

Court Custody and Prisoner Escort Service
General expenditure
Notional charges (see note 18)

Depreciation is applied to tangible, donated and intangible fixed assets. It includes £10,770k credit (2014-15 £16,270k credit),
in relation to impairments arising upon revaluation of land and buildings.
The note has been restated to show contingent rent in relation to the Private Prisons contracts which were previously included
as interest payable in the Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure.
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4. Other Current Expenditure

Victualling and other supplies

2015-16

2014-15

£000

£000

14,437

14,267

3,130

3,098

14,434

14,174

32,001

31,539

Prisoner earnings
Other costs

Other costs include fees paid for education contracts, £4,377k (2014-15 £4,245k) and social work costs £4,501k (2014-15 £5,389k).

5. Property, Plant and Equipment
Including Donated
Assets

Land Buildings Dwellings

Cost or Valuation

£000

£000

70,226

At 1 April 2015
Additions
Completed Assets under
Construction

Motor
Vehicles

Plant &
Equip

Comp Fixtures
Equip & Fittings

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

398,754

606,248

11,133

25,773

8,309

634

33

775

787

10

914

288

0

729

3,536

0

4,862

4,934

0

0

0

0

(9,796)

0

AUC

Total

£000

£000

11,251 1,132,328

Revaluation

5,672

1,968

16,875

0

0

0

0

0

24,515

Impairment

(24)

3,400

(1,630)

0

0

0

0

(442)

1,304

Transfers to other bodies

(4,500)

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

(4,500)

0

(57)

0

(12)

(702)

(1,616)

(16)

0

(2,403)

71,407

409,702

627,214

11,131

25,985

6,981

618

At 1 April 2015

0

23,864

39,889

4,904

19,188

6,306

576

0

94,727

Charge

0

11,589

17,959

1,425

2,541

1,331

19

0

34,864

Revaluation

0

(20,465)

(36,425)

0

0

0

0

0

(56,890)

Impairment

0

(2,435)

(7,031)

0

0

0

0

0

(9,466)

Disposals
At 31 March 2016

1,742 1,154,780

Depreciation

Disposals

0

(57)

0

(12)

(660)

(1,616)

(16)

0

(2,361)

At 31 March 2016

0

12,496

14,392

6,317

21,069

6,021

579

0

60,874

Carrying Value at
31 March 2016

71,407

397,206

612,822

4,814

4,916

960

39

1,742 1,093,906

Carrying Value at
31 March 2015

70,226

374,890

566,359

6,229

6,585

2,003

58

11,251 1,037,601

71,407

353,477

529,857

137

4,916

960

39

1,742

962,535

Asset financing:
Owned
Finance Leased

0

0

0

4,677

0

0

0

0

4,677

On-balance sheet
PFI/PPP

0

43,729

82,965

0

0

0

0

0

126,694

Carrying Value at
31 March 2016

71,407

397,206

612,822

4,814

4,916

960

39

1,742 1,093,906
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Including Donated
Assets

Land

Motor
Vehicles

Plant &
Equip

Cost or Valuation

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

66,591

368,805

559,739

11,241

26,336

6,073

641

0

96

190

59

479

1,410

33

20,002

22,269

3,263

4,176

6,513

0

154

875

0

(14,981)

0

Revaluation

3,454

17,166

26,633

0

0

0

0

0

47,253

Impairment

(3,073)

8,513

13,173

0

0

0

0

(1,256)

17,357

(9)

(2)

0

(167)

(1,196)

(49)

(40)

(259)

(1,722)

70,226

398,754

606,248

11,133

25,773

8,309

634

0

12,294

20,108

3,640

17,838

4,940

598

At 1 April 2014
Additions
Completed Assets under
Construction

Disposals
At 31 March 2015

*Restated *Restated
Buildings Dwellings

Comp Fixtures *Restated *Restated
Equip & Fittings
AUC
Total
£000

£000

7,745 1,047,171

11,251 1,132,328

Depreciation
At 1 April 2014

0

59,418

Charge

0

11,026

17,255

1,424

2,510

1,416

18

0

33,649

Revaluation

0

(1,086)

3,163

0

0

0

0

0

2,077

Impairment

0

1,630

(637)

0

0

0

0

0

993

Disposals

0

0

0

(160)

(1,160)

(50)

(40)

0

(1,410)

At 31 March 2015

0

23,864

39,889

4,904

19,188

6,306

576

0

94,727

Carrying Value at
31 March 2015

70,226

374,890

566,359

6,229

6,585

2,003

58

Carrying Value at
31 March 2014

66,591

356,511

539,631

7,601

8,498

1,133

43

7,745

987,753

11,251 1,037,601

Asset financing:
70,226

333,268

487,352

237

6,585

2,003

58

11,251

910,980

Finance Leased

Owned

0

0

0

5,992

0

0

0

0

5,992

On-balance sheet
PFI/PPP

0

41,622

79,007

0

0

0

0

0

120,629

Carrying Value at
31 March 2015

70,226

374,890

566,359

6,229

6,585

2,003

58

11,251 1,037,601

* Assets under construction have been represented to show assets started and completed within the same financial year as additions.
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The following specialised assets were valued by the Valuation Office Agency at 31 March 2016 at their depreciated replacement
cost (DRC); HMP Castle Huntly, HMP Edinburgh, HMP Greenock, HMP Inverness, HMP Low Moss, HM YOI Polmont and HMP Shotts.
The total value of these properties at that date was £541,196k.
Surplus land and buildings have been valued at fair value in accordance with IFRS13 as required by the FReM.
The value of these assets is £4,298k.
Included under land, building and dwellings are the properties for the Public Private Partnerships (PPPs) at HMP Kilmarnock and HMP
Addiewell. Both of these specialised assets were valued by the Valuation Office Agency at 31 March 2016 at their DRC. The total value
of these properties at that date was £128,598k. At the end of these 25-year contracts, the assets revert to SPS at nil cost.
The court custody and prisoner escort service is included within Motor Vehicles; the contract is accounted for in the same manner
as other assets with the same class. The underlying value of the infrastructure assets are the contractor’s estimate of fair value.
In accordance with IFRIC12 the infrastructure assets related to this contract are recognised as non-current assets.
The Scottish Government’s Infrastructure and Investment Plan 2015 (revised February 2016) includes details of prison development
plans over the next few years. As a result of the planned modernisation of the estate, the remaining lives for the buildings,
which are scheduled for demolition and closure, have been adjusted to reflect the planned period to demolition and closure using
the development plans to 31 March 2016. The total depreciation charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure is
shown in Note 3.
In accordance with the Scottish Government Scottish Public Finance Manual (SPFM), the former site of HMP Aberdeen was transferred
by Scottish Prison Service to Scottish Government on 1 October 2015. Title to the property remains with Scottish Ministers, although
full rights and responsibilities were transferred to Scottish Government who are subsequently responsible for all associated costs.
The site was subject to a professional valuation as at September 2015 and was transferred at a market value of £4,500k. In agreement
with the Scottish Government the SPS has not recognised any profit or loss related to this transaction. The transfer is reflected
against Land in Property, Plant and Equipment and also through Reserves in the Statement of Changes in Taxpayers Equity.
There is no requirement in the FReM for donated assets to be separately disclosed. The donated asset is included within Buildings.
The donated asset comprises a Visitors’ Reception at HMP Edinburgh provided to the SPS in March 2000 with the restriction that
it be leased to the developer, for a peppercorn rent for a period of 35 years, to be used solely as a Visitors’ Reception Centre.
The net book value at 31 March 2016 was £1,259k.

5.1 Assets Held for Sale
2015-16

2014-15

£000

£000

1,370

1,839

Property, Plant and Equipment
At 1 April
Revaluation
Disposals
At 31 March

0

(94)

(1,370)

(375)

0

1,370

The sale of the surplus land sites at HMP Edinburgh, which was valued by the Valuation Office at 31 March 2015 at £1,370k,
took place in March 2016.
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6. Intangible Assets
The SPS’s intangible fixed assets comprise:
Information
Technology

Software

AUC

Total

£000

£000

£000

£000

3,321

3,496

479

7,296

137

19

334

490

39

0

(39)

0

0

(640)

0

(640)

3,497

2,875

774

7,146

3,091

3,038

0

6,129

137

326

0

463

0

(640)

0

(640)

3,228

2,724

0

5,952

Carrying Value as at 31 March 2016

269

151

774

1,194

Carrying Value as at 31 March 2015

230

458

479

1,167

Asset financing: Owned

269

151

774

1,194

Information
Technology

Software

AUC

Total

£000

£000

£000

£000

3,091

3,187

450

6,728

Cost
At 1 April 2015
Additions
Completed AUC
Disposals
At 31 March 2016
Amortisation
At 1 April 2015
Charge
Disposals
At 31 March 2016

Cost
At 1 April 2014
Additions
Completed AUC
Disposals
At 31 March 2015

0

78

533

611

230

259

(489)

0

0

(28)

(15)

(43)

3,321

3,496

479

7,296

3,091

2,650

0

5,741

0

416

0

416

Amortisation
At 1 April 2014
Charge
Disposals
At 31 March 2015
Carrying Value as at 31 March 2015
Carrying Value as at 31 March 2014
Asset financing: Owned
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0

(28)

0

(28)

3,091

3,038

0

6,129

230

458

479

1,167

0

537

450

987

230

458

479

1,167
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7. Financial Instruments
As the cash requirements of the SPS are met through the spending review process, financial instruments play a more limited role
in creating and managing risk than in a non-public sector body. The majority of financial instruments relate to contracts to buy
non‑financial items in line with the SPS’s expected purchase and usage requirements and the SPS is therefore exposed to little credit,
liquidity or market risk.

8. Impairment Analysis
2015-16

2014-15

£000

£000

1,451

4,423

Impairment reversal

(12,221)

(20,693)

Revaluation reserve

1,483

28

(9,287)

(16,242)

Property, Plant and Equipment
Impairment charge

Total

The impairment reversal and charge are reflective of the properties valued at the 31 March 2016 and the application of indexation to
the remaining properties at that date. This resulted in a net impairment reversal of £10,770k.
Impairment reversals of £12,221k represent reversals of impairments charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure
(SOCNE) in previous years; the most significant reversals are HMP Addiewell (£5,464k) and HMP Glenochil (£6,568k).
The amounts taken through the revaluation reserve reflect the downward valuation of the land sites at HMP Addiewell, HMP Greenock
and HMP Low Moss.
The impairment of £1,451k charged to the SOCNE is largely a result of announcements made in June 2015 and February 2016,
by the Cabinet Secretary for Justice, in relation to the custodial estate for women.
The first announcement stated that plans for the Women’s Regional Unit at HMP Edinburgh would not go ahead. An impairment of
£441k was recorded in Assets under Construction.
The second announcement in respect of HMP & YOI Cornton Vale, stated that the closure of the establishment would commence
in the summer of 2016. Four houseblocks are scheduled for closure in August 2016 and the remaining lives for these have been
adjusted to reflect this. This has resulted in an impairment charge of £986k.

9. Inventories
2015-16

2014-15

£000

£000

1,181

1,180

Works, estates and locks

795

749

Industries raw materials, work in progress and finished goods for resale

863

963

(462)

(403)

2,377

2,489

The main categories of stock held are:
Consumables

Provision for obsolete stock
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10. Trade Receivables and Other Current Assets
10.1 Analysis by Type
2015-16

2014-15

£000

£000

Recoverable VAT

4,919

4,444

Trade receivables

155

243

Other receivables

318

400

Amounts due within one year:

Prepayments and accrued income

734

752

6,126

5,839

96

106

Amounts due after more than one year:
Other receivables

10.2 Intra-Government Balances
Amounts falling due
within one year

Amounts falling due
after more than one year

2015-16

2014-15

2015-16

2014-15

£000

£000

£000

£000

5,013

4,622

0

0

Balances with local authorities

1

1

0

0

Balances with NHS Boards

1

5

0

0

Intra-government balances

5,015

4,628

0

0

Balances with bodies external to government

1,111

1,211

96

106

Total receivables at 31 March

6,126

5,839

96

106

2015-16

2014-15

£000

£000

Balances with other central government bodies

11. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Balance as at 1 April

545

588

Net change in cash and cash equivalents

212

(43)

Balance as at 31 March

757

545

Government Banking Service

582

424

Commercial banks

136

88

39

33

757

545

The following balances at 31 March were held at:

Cash in hand
Balance at 31 March
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12. Trade Payables and Other Current Liabilities
12.1 Analysis by Type:
2015-16

2014-15

£000

£000

2,711

2,807

Amounts due within one year:
Other taxation and social security
Trade payables
Accruals and deferred income
Other payables
Amounts due to Justice Department
PFI/PPP and other service concession arrangements <one year

3,584

5,033

13,501

17,122

3,386

2,605

757

545

4,015

7,494

27,954

35,606

92,490

96,505

954

954

Amounts due after more than one year:
PFI/PPP and other service concession arrangements >one year
Deferred residual interest
Other accruals

46

395

93,490

97,854

The deferred residual interest of £954k (2014-15 £954k) relates to the residual value of vehicles under the Court Custody and
Prison Escort Service concession contract which revert to the lessor for nil consideration at the end of the contract.

12.2 Intra-Government Balances
Amounts falling due
within one year

Balances with other central government bodies
Balances with local authorities
Balances with NHS Boards

Amounts falling due
after more than one year

2015-16

2014-15

2015-16

2014-15

£000

£000

£000

£000

6,661

5,909

0

0

261

33

0

0

5

1

0

0

6,927

5,943

0

0

Balances with bodies external to government

21,027

29,663

93,490

97,854

Total payables at 31 March

27,954

35,606

93,490

97,854

Intra-government balances
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13. Provisions for Liabilities and Charges
2015-16

2015-16

2015-16

2015-16

2015-16

2014-15

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

Prisoner
Claims

Injury
Benefit

Dilapidation
Costs

Other
Charges

Total

Total

Balance at 1 April

2,707

8,801

1,056

893

13,457

14,890

Provided in the year

1,711

633

808

624

3,776

2,894

Provisions utilised in the year

(475)

(435)

(67)

(451)

(1,428)

(1,932)

0

9

0

0

9

11

Provisions not required written back

(929)

0

0

(121)

(1,050)

(2,406)

Balance at 31 March

3,014

9,008

1,797

945

14,764

13,457

2015-16

2015-16

2015-16

2015-16

2015-16

2014-15

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

Prisoner
Claims

Injury
Benefit

Dilapidation
Costs

Other
Charges

Total

Total

3,014

432

0

825

4,271

3,772

0

1,671

1,797

120

3,588

2,870

Unwinding of discount

Analysis of expected timing of discounted flows

Not later than one year
Later than one year and not later than five years
Later than five years

0

6,905

0

0

6,905

6,815

Balance at 31 March

3,014

9,008

1,797

945

14,764

13,457

Prisoner Claims
Historically a number of claims have been brought by prisoners which concerned prison conditions. Successive decisions by the
courts have provided clarity on the law and as a result of these, and decisions by Scottish Ministers, a number of claims have been
settled or dismissed. These have been reported in previous Annual Reports. In addition Section 14 of the Scotland Act 2012 repealed
the Convention Rights Proceedings (Amendment) (Scotland) Act 2009 and amended the Scotland Act 1998 to provide a one year time
limit for convention rights claims similar to that contained in the Human Rights Act 1998. This means that a convention rights claim
brought against Scottish Ministers must be brought against Scottish Ministers within one year unless a court or tribunal considers it
‘equitable having regard to all circumstances’ to allow a claim out with this time limit.
A number of other recent convention rights claims have been lodged in court and provision has been made for these.
The majority of these relate to Article 5(4) and Article 3 of the European Convention of Human Rights.

Dilapidation Costs
Dilapidation costs are in respect of Calton House which become payable on expiry of the lease in October 2017.

Injury Benefits
Injury Benefits include estimates of amounts payable to former employees for loss of earnings under the Civil Service
Injury Benefit Scheme.

Other Charges
Other charges include estimates of amounts payable for staff compensation and related costs and early retirement costs.
Also included within provisions are amounts for the demolition costs of prisons planned for closure and disposal where a
constructive obligation arises or where required for site clearance.
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14. Capital Commitments
Contracted capital commitments at 31 March not otherwise included in these accounts:

Property, Plant and Equipment

2015-16

2014-15

£000

£000

78

2,238

15. Commitments under Leases
15.1 Operating Leases
Total future minimum lease payments under operating leases are given in the table below for each of the following periods:
Obligations under operating leases for the following periods comprise:
2015-16

2014-15

£000

£000

Not later than one year

31

31

Later than one year and not later than five years

17

48

48

79

644

648

Land

Buildings
Not later than one year

375

1,019

1,019

1,667

Not later than one year

684

655

Later than one year and not later than five years

594

982

1,278

1,637

Later than one year and not later than five years
Other
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16. Commitments under PFI Contracts and Other Service Concession Arrangements
The total amount charged in the Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure in respect of the service element of on-balance sheet
PFI and other service concession transactions was £56,491k (2014-15 £56,309k). Total future obligations under on-balance sheet
PFI and other service concession arrangements are given in the table below for each of the following periods:
Minimum lease payments:
2015-16

Restated
2014-15

£000

£000

68,523

71,023

Due later than one year and not later than five years

244,488

261,108

Due later than five years

616,812

668,715

929,823

1,000,846

Less interest element

(77,431)

(85,436)

Present value

852,392

915,410

2015-16

2014-15

£000

£000

Due within one year

Service elements due in future periods, included above, are:

57,050

55,525

Due later than one year and not later than five years

203,152

217,649

Due later than five years

495,685

538,238

Total service elements due in future periods

755,887

811,412

Due within one year

The figures for 2014-15 have been restated in order to comply with the requirements of the 2015-16 FReM.

PFI Contracts
The SPS has awarded Public Private Partnership (PPP) contracts, to design, construct, manage and finance prisons at HMP Kilmarnock
and HMP Addiewell. Both contracts were let for 25 year operating periods, commencing in March 1999 for HMP Kilmarnock and in
December 2008 for HMP Addiewell. Both contracts are treated as on balance sheet in accordance with IFRIC 12, Service Concession
Arrangements. The minimum lease payments that SPS is committed to make over the remainder of the respective contract periods
are included in the above table in respect of HMP Kilmarnock and HMP Addiewell. The annual payments will vary over the remaining life
of each contract in accordance with the specified indexation and unitary charge mechanisms. The capital liability for HMP Kilmarnock
is now nil, however, payments for the service element continue to the end of the contract.

Other Service Concession Arrangements
In March 2011, the SPS awarded a contract for Court Custody and Prisoner Escort service to G4S. The contract was let for a seven year
period with an option to extend for a further three years. The service commenced in January 2012. The vehicles provided with the
service are treated as on balance sheet in accordance with IFRIC 12, Service Concession Arrangements. The minimum lease payments
that SPS is committed to make over the remainder of the respective contract periods are included in the above table. The annual
payments will vary over the remaining life of the contract in accordance with the specified indexation and unitary charge mechanisms.
In the event of termination of these contracts, in accordance with Scottish Government guidance, the SPS has committed to pay
certain amounts to the contractor according to defined formulae in the respective contracts. The specific value of the termination
sum would depend on the reason for termination and the timing in relation to the contract expiry date.
A copy of the contracts for HMP Kilmarnock, HMP Addiewell and Court Custody and Prisoner Escort Services are available on the
SPS website www.sps.gov.uk.
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17. Contingent Liabilities
At 31 March the SPS had outstanding contingent liabilities totalling:

Prisoner Claims
Other Charges

2015-16

2014-15

£000

£000

803

308

240

51

1,043

359

Contingent liabilities for prisoner claims have been included in respect of prisoner compensation and expenses for potential liability
in a number of cases where challenges have been made against SPS but which await court consideration.

18. Notional Charges
The following notional charge has been included in the accounts:

Statutory Audit Services
Other Reviews
Total Auditor’s Remuneration

2015-16

2014-15

£000

£000

96

96

0

15

96

111

The audit fee is a notional charge, as notified to us by our auditors, Audit Scotland.

19. Key Financial Target
The annual average cost per prisoner place, which excludes capital charges, exceptional payments and the cost of the
Court Custody and Prisoner Escort contract, was £34,399 (2014-15 £34,102).
For information purposes, the actual annual average cost per prisoner place, calculated on a resource accounting basis
(including depreciation and impairment charges), in 2015-16 was £37,331 (2014-15 £36,302).
The actual annual average cost per prisoner place including exceptional payments in 2015-16 was £34,302 (2014-15 £34,096).
Exceptional payments include charges/release of provisions for prisoner compensation and related costs.

20. Related Party Transactions
The SPS is an Executive Agency of the Scottish Government. The Scottish Government is regarded as a related party with which
the SPS has various material transactions during the year. In 2015-16, none of the Board Members, members of key management
staff or other related parties has undertaken any material transactions with the SPS.
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21. Third Party Assets
At 31 March 2016 the SPS operated bank accounts holding funds in respect of prisoners monies and common good funds.
The balances on these accounts are held on behalf of prisoners and are therefore not included in the financial statements.
The value of the funds held in these accounts are set out in the tables below.

21.1 Prisoners’ Funds

Balance as at 1 April
Funds paid in during the year
Funds paid out during the year
Balance as at 31 March

2015-16

2014-15

£000

£000

744

725

15,457

10,875

(15,399)

(10,856)

802

744

2015-16

2014-15

21.2 Common Good Fund
£000

£000

Balance as at 1 April

205

177

Funds paid in during the year

541

475

(536)

(447)

210

205

Funds paid out during the year
Balance as at 31 March

The Common Good Fund in each establishment exists for the benefit of the prisoners in custody at that establishment.

22. Analysis of Net Expenditure by Segment
The SPS currently operates three segments, namely:
> Public Prisons;
> Private Prisons; and
> Court Custody and Prisoner Escort Services (CCPES).

The SPS is legally required to deliver custodial services for all those sent to it by the courts. During 2015-16 there were 13 publicly
managed prisons and two privately-managed prisons. The location of each of the establishments is listed on Appendix 1 of the
SPS Annual Report and Accounts 2015-16. SPS agrees a service framework with each public sector prison and manages private sector
providers of prisons and custodial services under contract arrangements. Copies of the services agreements with the publicly managed
prisons and contracts with the privately managed providers of custodial services are available on the SPS website www.sps.gov.uk.
In March 2011, SPS awarded a contract to G4S and Justice Services (UK) Ltd. The contract commenced in January 2012. The contract
itself covers a range of prisoner transport and security related services which are delivered to a number of agencies, namely:
> SPS;
> Scottish Court Service;
> Police Scotland; and
> The State Hospital and other NHS secure Units.

Public
Prisons

Private
Prisons

CCPES

2015-16

£000

£000

£000

£000

Net operating cost

267,266

35,510

20,981

323,757

Non-current assets

963,825

126,694

4,677

1,095,196
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APPENDIX TO THE ACCOUNTS

SCOTTISH PRISON SERVICE
DIRECTION BY THE SCOTTISH MINISTERS
in accordance with section 19(4) of the Public Finance and Accountability (Scotland) Act 2000
1. The statement of accounts for the financial year ended 31 March 2006 and subsequent years shall comply with the accounting
principles and disclosure requirements of the edition of the Government Financial Reporting Manual (FReM) which is in force for the
year for which the statement of accounts are prepared.
2. The accounts shall be prepared so as to give a true and fair view of the income and expenditure, recognised gains and losses, and
cash flows for the financial year, and of the state of affairs as at the end of the financial year.
3. This direction shall be reproduced as an appendix to the statement of accounts. The direction given on 29 March 2001 is hereby revoked.

Signed by the authority of the Scottish Ministers
Dated

17 January 2006
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APPENDIX 1
LOCATION OF ESTABLISHMENTS
Scotland’s Prisons
01
02
03
04
05
06
07
08

Addiewell
Barlinnie
Castle Huntly
Cornton Vale
Dumfries
Edinburgh
Glenochil
Grampian

09
10
11
12
13
14
15
16

Greenock
Headquarters
Inverness
Kilmarnock
Low Moss
Perth
Polmont
Shotts

11

08

14
04
09

13
02

07
15 10
01 06
16

12

05
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APPENDIX 2
AVERAGE DAILY POPULATION AND MAXIMUM NUMBER BY PENAL ESTABLISHMENT: 2015-16
AVERAGE DAILY POPULATION1
Male

Female

DAILY MAXIMUMS2
Total

Male

Female

Total

Establishment
Addiewell
Barlinnie

699

-

699

711

-

711

1,208

-

1,208

1,306

-

1,306

-

204

204

-

226

226

Cornton Vale
Dumfries

171

-

171

187

-

187

Edinburgh

769

94

863

832

106

938

Glenochil

641

-

641

657

-

657

Grampian

368

44

412

413

52

465

Greenock

180

43

223

197

58

255

Inverness

116

-

116

129

-

129

Kilmarnock

500

-

500

510

-

510

Low Moss

747

-

747

775

-

775

Open Estate

230

-

230

259

-

259

Perth

625

-

625

667

-

667

Shotts

531

-

531

538

-

538

Cornton Vale

-

15

15

-

23

23

Grampian

-

4

4

-

8

8

Young Offenders Institutions3

Polmont
Total

486

-

486

509

-

509

7,271

404

7,675

7,690

458

8,148

Source:

Notes:

Data are based on the Scottish Prison
Service PR2 information management
system archived aggregate tables.
Figures published prior to 2012-13 were
from datasets managed by Scottish
Government Justice Analytical Services,
but it has not been possible to replicate
this analysis since 2011-12 due to ongoing
technical issues. The most notable
difference between the two data sources
is that the figures shown in this annual
report do not include prisoners classified
as unlawfully at large.

1. Components may not add to
totals due to rounding.
2. The figures in these columns cannot
be added to produce a total maximum
number as the individual establishment
figures relate to different days during
the year. Maximum figures for
Cornton Vale and Grampian include
the YOI population.

3. A small number of persons aged 21
or over may be held in young offender
institutions and small number of
young offenders under 21 may be
held in adult prisoners if warranted
by special circumstances, such as
proximity to courts.
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APPENDIX 3
AVERAGE DAILY POPULATION IN ESTABLISHMENTS BY TYPE OF CUSTODY: 2015-16
Remand

1,494

Persons under sentence:
Under four years

3,353

Four years and over (including life sentences and lifer recalls)

2,828
6,181

Total

7,675

Source:

Notes:

Data are based on the Scottish Prison
Service PR2 information management
system archived aggregate tables.
Figures published in annual reports prior
to 2012-13 were based on datasets
managed by Scottish Government
Justice Analytical Services, but it has not
been possible to replicate this analysis
since 2011-12 due to ongoing technical
issues. The most notable difference
between the two data sources is that
the figures shown in this annual report
do not include prisoners classified as
unlawfully at large. The classification of
long-term determinate prisoners recalled
from licence is also different between the
two data sources: these are classified as
long-termers in the Scottish Government
statistics as they are still subject to parole
procedures. On PR2, these prisoners
will be classified as short-termers if the
recalculated sentence on recall is less
than four years.

Components may not add to totals due to
rounding. Remand figures include a small
number of persons awaiting deportation
as these are classified as untried on
PR2. The way the data are held on the
PR2 aggregate tables does not allow an
accurate breakdown by sentence and age.
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APPENDIX 4
ABSCONDS FROM CUSTODY 2015-16
The following is the agreed position from Operations Directorate with regard to the number and breakdown of absconds and failures
to return for 2015-16.
Absconds and Failures to Return – 2015-16
Cornton Vale

Greenock

Open Estate

Polmont

Total

Abscond

0

0

0

0

0

Failure to Return

1

2

8

1

12

Total

1

2

8

1

12
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APPENDIX 5
BREACHES OF DISCIPLINE AND OUTCOME IN PENAL ESTABLISHMENTS BY SEX AND AGE: 2015-16
Adults
Men

Average daily population

Young Offenders

Women

Men

All

Women

Men

Women

6,842

385

429

19

7,271

404

4,762

297

308

54

5,070

351

Breaches of discipline
Disobeying a lawful order
Possessing an unauthorised/prohibited article/quantity of an article

2,849

266

242

9

3,091

275

Using threatening/abusive/insulting words of behaviour

1,903

242

182

58

2,085

300

Fighting

1,133

145

356

8

1,489

153

Destroying or damaging property

714

83

236

21

950

104

Administering, or allowing to be administered, a controlled drug to oneself

975

95

56

7

1,031

102
107

Assault

709

101

228

6

937

Disobeying a rule or regulation

514

44

5

4

519

48

Intentionally refusing to work or failing to work properly

317

28

32

8

349

36

Intentionally or recklessly endangering the health or personal safety of
others

403

28

47

20

450

48

Detains any person against their will

3

3

Smoking in an area where smoking is not permitted

249

31

17

-

266

31

Unauthorised absence from or presence in any part of the establishment

218

38

35

5

253

43

Consuming/taking/injecting/ingesting/inhaling or concealing an
unauthorised or prohibited substance

128

17

12

2

140

19

Taking (improperly) any article

117

22

14

1

131

23

Intentionally obstructing any person, other than a prisoner, in the course
of their work

84

9

15

7

99

16

Being disrespectful to any officer, worker or visitor

83

12

11

3

94

15

109

13

7

-

116

13

Sale or delivery of an unauthorised article
Arson

44

27

9

1

53

28

Committing an indecent or obscene act

34

6

5

-

39

6

Failing without reasonable excuse to open mouth for a visual examination

23

-

-

-

23

-

5

2

1

-

6

2

35

3

1

-

36

3

2

Denying an officer access to any part of the prison
Escaping or absconding from custody
Attempting/inciting/assisting to commit/attempt to commit any of the
above

138

18

29

167

20

15,549

1,527

1,848

216 17,397

1,743

Forfeiture of privileges

14,102

903

1,866

188 15,968

1,091

Stoppage/deduction from earnings or other cash

Breaches of discipline: total
Punishments awarded

11,272

667

1,394

87 12,666

754

Caution

1,890

183

99

22

1989

205

Confinement to cell

1,416

106

273

25

1689

131

96

14

5

-

101

14

28,776

1,873

3,637

322 32,413

2,195

2

4

4

Forfeiture of other entitlements
Punishments awarded: total
Breaches of discipline per head of average prison population

11

2

Source:
Data are derived from the Scottish Prison Service PR2 information management system archived aggregate tables.
Notes:
It is possible for more than one punishment to be awarded for one breach of discipline, and conversely one punishment may be given for several
breaches of discipline. Components may not add to total due to rounding. Changes to prison rules were implemented during 2012, headings may
therefore differ slightly from previous years. Headings have been reordered and some have been combined in the interests of clarity.
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APPENDIX 6
STAFF NUMBERS AND RECRUITMENT
Staff in Post
As at 31 March 2016 there was 4,651 staff in post.
Total

Full-time

Part-time

Disabled
(self-declared)

Female

1,328

1,188

140

81

Male

3,323

3,068

255

240

SPS Board (which includes all senior civil servants within SPS)
As at March 2016

Chief Executive

Directors

Non-Executive
Directors

Total

Female

0

2

2

4

Male

1

3

2

6

Staff in Post: Age Groups
As at March 2016

16-24

25-34

35-44

45-54

55-64

Over 65

Total

Female

145

444

329

291

116

<5

1,328

Male

151

563

497

1,415

659

38

3,323

Staff in Post: Ethnicity
As at March 2016
Ethnicity

Total

Arab Scottish

<5

Asian Other

<5

Black African

<5

Black Other

<5

British Asian Other

<5

Mixed Other

<5

Mixed White and Asian

<5

Mixed White and Black Caribbean

<5

Not Advised

641

Other Ethnic Group

<5

Prefer not to Disclose

2,482

Scottish Pakistani

<5

White

428

White English

71

White Gypsy Traveller

<5

White Irish

7

White Northern Irish

13

White Other

7

White Scottish

981

White Southern Irish

<5

White Welsh

<5
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APPENDIX 6 (cont’d)
STAFF NUMBERS AND RECRUITMENT
Leavers: Age Groups
As at March 2016

16-24

25-34

35-44

45-54

55-64

Over 65

Total

Female

12

17

7

19

14

<5

71

Male

13

35

19

36

40

20

163

Recruitment
Appointed
2015-2016

Male

Female

266

139

127

Ethnic Origin
Mixed White and Black Caribbean

<5

Not Advised

37

Prefer not to Disclose

200

White

<5

White English

<5

White Northern Irish

<5

White Other

<5

White Scottish

19

White Southern Irish

<5

Disabled
(self-declared)

Part-time/
Job share

<5

11

Recruitment: Age Groups
As at March 2016

16-24

25-34

35-44

45-54

55-64

Over 65

Total

Female

43

43

20

14

7

<5

127

Male

38

54

16

23

7

<5

139

Exceptions
Short-Term
Appointments

Secondments

13

Re-appointment of
Former Civil Servants

0

Transfers into
the Civil Service

8

Surplus Acceptable
Candidates

0

0

Promotion
The following personnel were promoted:
Promoted
2015-2016

Female

Male

Ethnic Origin

203

123

80

Mixed White and Asian

<5

Not Advised

<5

Prefer not to Disclose

117

White

24

White English

<5

White Other

<5

White Scottish

56

White Welsh

<5

APPENDIX 6

Disabled
(self-declared)

Part-time/
Job Share

14

<5
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APPENDIX 7
PARLIAMENTARY ACCOUNTABILITY (1 April 2015 – 31 March 2016)
Ministerial Correspondence
No. Received

No. of Replies issued
within 15 working days

No. of Replies issued
outwith target date

MSP’s letters for Ministerial reply

24

24

0

MSP’s letters for Chief Executive reply

62

59

3

Total (2015-16)

86

83 (96.5%)

3 (3.5%)

Total (2014-15)

83

66 (79.5%)

17 (20.5%)

Total

Ministerial Replies

Chief Executive’s Replies

Year ended 31 March 2016

76

3

73

Year ended 31 March 2015

37

1

36

Category of Response

Scottish Parliamentary Questions
Year
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Our collaboration with
partners enable the
co-production of
services for prisoners

Our governance approach
accords with the
principles published by
CIPFA (Scotland)

Our people are motivated
and highly skilled, and our
HR practices support the
delivery of a progressive
prison service

OUTCOMES

Developing a collaborative
outcome focus

Delivering effective and
efficient services

Becoming a learning
organisation
Our performance is
shaped by research and
reflective practice

Developing a
person-centred,
asset-based approach
Our prisoners believe they
are empowered to build
on their assets and have
ambition for the futures

Our ambitions for the lives
of those in our care are
understood by the public
and stakeholders

Promoting public
confidence in SPS

Embedding the new vision

STRATEGIC
PRIORITIES

Transforming civil and
administrative justice

Providing services that help to transform the lives of people in our care so that they can fulfil their potential and become responsible citizens

Strengthening
community
engagement and
resilience

Increasing public
confidence and
reducing fear and crime

Widening access to
justice and advancing
law reform

MISSION

Reducing the harm
from first and other
emergencies

Supporting victims and
witnesses

Enhancing efficiency

Help build a safer Scotland – Unlocking Potential – Transforming Lives

Preventing offending
by young people

Reducing the damaging
impacts of drug and
alcohol problems

Tackling hate crime
and sectarianism

Our public services respect
the rights and voices of users

Our people and communities support
and respect each other, exercising
both their rights and responsibilities

VISION

Reducing
re-offending

Reducing crime,
particularly violent and
serious organised crime

Our institutions and process are
effective and efficient

Our public services are fair
and accessible

We have high levels of confidence in
justice institutions and processes

PRIORITIES

We are at low risk of
unintentional harm

We experience low levels
of fear, alarm and distress

We experience low levels
of crime

JUSTICE
OUTCOMES

Our public services are high quality, continually
improving, efficient and responsive to local
people’s needs

We live our lives safe from crime,
disorder and danger

We have strong resilient and supportive communities
where people take responsibility for their own actions
and how they affect others

Our vision is a justice service that contributes positively to a flourishing Scotland, helping to create an inclusive and respectful society in which
all people and communities live in safety and security, individual and collective rights are supported and disputes are resolved fairly and swiftly

To focus government and public services on creating a more successful country, with opportunities for all of Scotland to flourish, through
increasing sustainable economic growth

NATIONAL
OUTCOMES

VISION

PURPOSE

Investing in SPS people

SPS STRATEGY

JUSTICE
STRATEGY
FOR SCOTLAND

SCOTTISH
GOVERNMENT

SCOTTISH PRISON SERVICE PERFORMANCE MODEL 2015/16
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APPENDIX 8b
WHAT DO THE OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE INDICATORS MEAN?
Key Outcomes

KPI

Definition

Related National Outcomes

Related National
Indicators

SPS maintains secure custody and good order
We live our lives safe
from crime, disorder
and danger.
Our public services
are high quality,
continually improving,
efficient and
responsive to local
people’s needs.

1. Escapes

a)
b)
c)
d)

Extreme risk.
All other supervision levels.
Absconds.
Incidents of failure to return.

2. Assaults

a) S
 erious prisoner on staff assaults.
b) S
 erious prisoner on prisoner
assaults.
c) Other prisoner on staff assaults.
d) Other prisoner on prisoner
assaults.

Reduce re-conviction
rates

Reduce re-conviction
rates

SPS cares for prisoners with humanity and offers them appropriate opportunities

We live our lives safe
from crime, disorder
and danger.
Our public services
are high quality,
continually improving,
efficient and
responsive to local
people’s needs.

We realise our full economic potential Reduce reconviction
with more and better employment
rates. Improve levels of
opportunities for our people.
Educational attainment.
Increase Physical
We are better educated, more
Activity
skilled and successful, renowned for
our research and innovation.

3. P
 urposeful
Activity Hours

Any supervised and/or structured
activity that contributes to reducing
re-offending.

4. I ncrease in
Literacy and
Numeracy

a) T
 he percentage of prisoner
Our young people are successful
learning hours delivered with a
primary aim of developing literacy learners, confident individuals,
effective contributors and responsible
skills.
citizens.
b) T
 he percentage of prisoner
We live longer, healthier lives.
learning hours delivered with a
We have improved the life chances
primary aim of developing
for children, young people and
numeracy skills.
families at risk.

Reduce reconviction
rates. Improve levels of
Educational attainment.

SPS maintains secure custody and good order

We live our lives safe
from crime, disorder
and danger.
Our public services
are high quality,
continually improving,
efficient and
responsive to local
people’s needs

5. V
 ocational
qualifications

a) Number of vocational and
employment-related qualifications.
b) Number of vocational and
employment-related qualifications
at SCQF level 5 or above.

6. I ncrease in
employability

The percentage of prisoners
accessing JobCentre Plus’
pre-release service who move into
employment, education or training
within 13 weeks of release.

7. R
 educed or
stabilised drug
misuse

The number of prisoners testing
positive on entry compared with the
number testing positive on exit.

8. Integrated Case
Management
case
conferences
with social work
contributions

We realise our full economic
potential with more and better
employment opportunities for our
people.
We are better educated, more
skilled and successful, renowned for
our research and innovation.
Our young people are successful
learners, confident individuals,
effective contributors and
responsible citizens.

We live longer, healthier lives.
The percentage of case conferences
We have improved the life chances
held for prisoners to be released to
for children, young people and
Scotland where the community
families at risk.
Criminal Justice Social Worker
attended.

Reduce reconviction
rates. Improve levels of
Educational attainment.
Improving the skill profile
of the population.
Reduce reconviction
rates. Improving the skill
profile of the population.
Reduce reconviction
rates. Reducing the
number of individuals
with problem drug use.
Reduce reconviction
rates. Reducing crime
victimisation rates.

SPS offers value for money to the taxpayer
Our public services
are high quality,
continually improving,
efficient and
responsive to local
people’s needs.

9. A
 verage annual
cost
per prisoner
place

We value and enjoy our
built and natural
environment and
protect it and enhance
it for future
generations.

10. R
 educing
Carbon
Emissions

Improve people’s
perceptions of the
quality of public services.

From 2010, a 20% reduction in
carbon emissions by 2015 with
anticipated savings over the 5 year
plan equating to 45,335 tonnes of
CO2, and £8.1m.

We reduce the local and global
environmental impact of our
consumption and production.

Reduce Scotland’s
Carbon Footprint.
Reduce waste
generated.
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APPENDIX 9
COURT CUSTODY AND PRISONER ESCORT SERVICE
CORE VOLUMES
(Excluding Bail to Establishment)
Apr-15

May-15

Jun-15

Jul-15

Aug-15

Sep-15

Oct-15

Nov-15

Dec-15

Jan-16

Feb-16

Police Station to Court

6,375

6,085

7,063

6,981

7,017

6,581

6,473

6,103

6,971

6,052

6,419

6,452

78,572

78,878

Prison to Court

4,041

3,949

4,534

4,516

4,274

4,458

4,443

4,148

3,862

3,930

4,241

4,452

50,848

52,529

86

59

65

55

82

83

80

64

81

64

77

71

867

1,539

304

286

362

367

326

320

339

276

268

278

307

341

3,774

3,610

10,806

10,379

12,024

11,919

11,699

11,442

11,335

10,591

11,182

10,324

11,044

2,308

2,321

2,511

2,576

2,252

2,327

2,259

2,061

1,428

1,805

1,992

13,114

12,700

14,535

14,495

13,951

13,769

13,594

12,652

12,610

12,129

13,036

1,417

1,356

1,463

1,514

1,430

1,460

1,441

1,448

1,550

1,326

1,450

14,531

14,056

15,998

16,009

15,381

15,229

15,035

14,100

14,160

13,455

14,486

% delivered to court
on time

84%

79%

72%

82%

86%

89%

91%

88%

89%

92%

90%

90%

86%

84%

Number of Prisoners
Unlawfully at Large

0

2

1

0

3

1

1

0

0

1

1

0

10

9

Mental Health Hospitals
to Court
Court Others
Total Core Services
Total External Services
Total Core Volume
Total Non Core Volume
Total Movements
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Mar-16 2015-16 2014-15
Total
Total

11,316 134,061 136,556
2,202

26,042

25,981

13,518 160,103 162,537
1,526

17,381

17,230

15,044 177,484 179,767
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